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Financial Highlights

MERE
Year ended 31 December,
BE+=-A=+—-HLt
2012 2011 Change
20125 20114 &g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
-
Turnover = 699,555 | 674,983 4%
Profit from operations R T 191,466 211,812 -10%
Profit before non-controlling interests FEHE AR %5 AL ) 123,928 140,756 -12%
Non-controlling interests FEFEARAE RS (53,852) (59,330) -9%
Profit attributable to owners RATREEBA
__ofthe Company = EfgmM® 0000 70,076 | 81,426 -14%
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HKD) FEAEF GBTT) 0.17 0.20 -15%
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Financial Highlights

MBEE
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The weighted average number of shares in issue during the years ended
31 December 2012, 2011 and 2010 was based on the assumption that
the 415,000,000 shares before the listing on the Stock Exchange were
in issue, as if such shares had been outstanding throughout the years
ended 31 December 2012, 2011 and 2010.

EH E20124F ~ 20114 R2010F12A31H L FE®
BB AT RR 19 B DA T 35 BT AR IR R AR AR 17 WA Bk 22 P
ETRIB415,000,00008 B BITRMG MIFH - Ba0:Z
LR MR E ZE20129F + 2011 %2010 12A8318 1b
FE—EFE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

B35 o A AR T INE
EERMETEDIHEIER—RE
ot b Tk A

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
and the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
2012.

| would like to report on several Board changes. | am delighted to
welcome Mr. Zeng Xiangyang as the Executive Director and President
of the Company and Mr. He Lijun as the Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement
e e

“ In the future, we have set our development goal to secure
a foothold in China, the Group will continue to pursue
acquisition strategies to strengthen our market position as
a leading cigarette packaging materials manufacturer in

Jiangsu Province, China. ”

2012 was a landmark year in the history of the Group. We are
excited to envisage a new era in our history with a launch of a new
identity. As a cigarette packaging materials manufacturer with a
leading position in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC” or “China”), the Group was successfully listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 July
2012. We believe that the successful listing does not only provide
financial support for our future expansion and development of
the Group, but also enhances the Group’s reputation and further
strengthens our corporate governance structure.

As the European sovereign debt crisis and the region’s gloomy
economic outlook are both expected to continue, the PRC economy
is not immune to the impact of the global economic uncertainties.
However, the economy in China is expected to grow steadily and the
PRC Central Government's GDP growth target of 7.5% for 2012 was
regarded as healthy and satisfactory. It is also a challenging year for
the BOPP film industry in China. The industry entered a thorny year
with the continuing rise in raw material prices, polypropylene, and
the transportation expenses.

Q0RFRASEERES FEEERBERN—F -
BPRBEFHEE  EAKEERL FEERN—
B HABRFNE® - EREPEARKME ([
Bl|) I#RE AGEENMNEERREM RSN -
AEER2012F7 13K I ER BB S X H
BRATET - BHMBEELTRNIMEREAEEK
KRB REEFEREMBZE - ARTRESAEE
BIPE - IR B MR B 5EE -

FR R BUM £ 1B 75 i K & P9 2k /9 45 75 AT = 78 AP
MARFE - RBREE T E R T B 2B
AR EMTE - A PRGCEBEHEREBTE -
REPRBEFGE2012FERNEERLELRBIEE
B7.5%  HIBBEBEBANEIZ - FHBOPPERE
BUEREFE—FmkE - TEEANBRREN—
F o RMEBERGERRERFSZ TE L -

I R '



The Group has been accelerating new BOPP film product research
and development, intensifying new market development and
enforcing new business breakthroughs, while implementing its
ongoing innovation management, optimization in management
structure and acceleration of product structural adjustments.

As a result, we are glad to see that the Group was able to maintain
similar scale of operations as that of the previous year with total
revenue amounting to approximately HK$700 million in 2012. The
Group's net profit stood at approximately HK$124 million and profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$70
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. Nevertheless, after
adjusting for the effect of the one-off expense for the initial public
offering project charged to profit or loss, the Group’s net profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$80
million.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$10 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The dividend represents a
payout ratio of 59% of the Company’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the 2012 Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM") on 20 May 2013, the proposed final dividend will be
paid on or about 10 June 2013 to Shareholders who are registered at
the close of business on 28 May 2013.

Last but not least, | would also like to thank all my fellow Directors
for their wise advice to the Company. On behalf of the Board, |
extend to all our stakeholders, business partners and Shareholders,
our sincere thanks and appreciation for your continuous support.
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Organization Chart
MERE

M2012%12A31H
As at 31 December 2012

Sheen China Group Holdings Inc.
IBZEEEZERERAR
(Incorporated in BVI)

(REBE LS ML)

100% 100% 100%

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging Qingdao Ener Packaging
Printing Science Technology Co., Ltd. Technology Co., Ltd.
SIRFIERBEERIRHRARAE BERREENRERAR
(Established in PRC) (Established in PRC)
(RHREIRR L) (RFREIR L)

Ling Xian Fei Yu
Import & Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
BAERFELHD (RY) BRAF
(Established in PRC)
(RHBIRLL)

65%

On 11 January 2013, Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology Co.,  * R2013F1ANMA  IHSEERBRER QA HEE
Ltd. and Huaian Hetai Investment Co., Ltd., has set up a new subsidiary, TATREARDTKRYI —KHTNMBAGIEHS
Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. with equity interest of FEREREERAR - D51E70% R30%H) IR o
70% and 30% respectively.
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OVERVIEW

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company” or
"Group”) is
a packaging materials manufacturer and supplier with a leading
position in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China”), focusing on developing, promoting and sales of
imported films, self-manufactured films and cigarette paper boxes.
The Group's products can be broadly classified into three categories,
namely, (i) cigarette-related packaging materials (comprising
cigarette paper boxes, anti-counterfeiting films and other cigarette
films manufactured by the Group); (ii) imported films; and (iii) non-
cigarette-related packaging materials (being films for packaging non-
cigarette-related products manufactured by the Group). The Group
has made sales to (i) cigarette manufacturers; (ii)

“Sheentai”) and together with its subsidiaries (the

other customers of
cigarette films; and (iii) customers of non-cigarette-related packaging
materials. The Group has two factories, namely the Shuntai Factory,
located in Huai'an City in Jiangsu Province, accommodating
production facilities for (i) the printing and manufacturing of
cigarette paper boxes; and (ii) the printing of anti-counterfeiting
films, and the Ener Factory, located in Qingdao City in Shandong
Province, accommodating production facilities for the manufacturing
of films.

Despite the volatile financial markets and uncertain recovery trends
in Europe, the growth in production cost and the rate of inflation
appear to be slowing down in China in 2012. The economy in China
has continued to grow steadily in 2012 and it has accelerated the
urbanization process in China which increased the percentage of
Chinese population with growing disposable income. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, the PRC government has taken
proactive measures to uphold its growth target and the impact of
these government measures remains to be seen. The Group will
continuously implement tight cost control measures, stringent quality
management and competitive strategy to explore new markets in
other provinces.
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RESULTS OF OPERATION

The Group’s turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less
returns, discounts and value added taxes and other sales taxes and
which are principally derived from the manufacturing and trading of
cigarette-related and non-cigarette related packaging materials. The
Group reported turnover of approximately HK$699.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012, an increase of approximately 3.6%
compared to approximately HK$675.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011. The increase in turnover is attributable not only
to the continued strategic efforts made in developing the customer
base in other provinces, but also the Group’s renowned strength in
producing delicate packaging product which further reflects that the
business strategy adopted by the Group is appropriate.

Manufacturing and sale of cigarette-related packaging
materials

The increase in turnover from cigarette-related packaging materials
by approximately 10.1% to approximately HK$572.2 million
(2011: approximately HK$519.5 million) was mainly contributed
by (i) the growth in sales of the Group's cigarette paper boxes by
approximately 7.0%, from approximately HK$268.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$286.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily as a result of the
increase in demand from the Group's customer of cigarette paper
boxes; (ii) the increase in sales of the Group's other cigarette films by
approximately 32.9%, from approximately HK$111.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$148.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to one of the
Group's key customers of other cigarette films has purchased more
products from the Group and the Group is its sole supplier for other
cigarette films after the termination of its BOPP film production line.

The increase was partially offset by the decrease in the sales of anti-
counterfeiting films by approximately 11.8%, from HK$84.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$74.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to the
delay of purchase orders from the Group’s major customer of anti-
counterfeiting films as a result of their internal machinery renewal
during the first half year of 2012. The demand of anti-counterfeiting
films of the Group’s major customer has recovered in the second half
of 2012.
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Management Discussion and [\nalysis
=S TH B A A T, A A
B /ﬁ/’gjuquﬂ? &77 JU\

Trading of imported films

Revenue from the Group’s trading of imported films increased
by approximately HK$7.0 million, or approximately 12.7%, from
approximately HK$55.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to approximately HK$62.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2012. The revenue has increased gradually after the
Company'’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Ling Xian Fei Yu Import
& Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Ling Xian Fei Yu"”), has taken over
all trading activities of imported films from the Group’s agents after
obtaining the approved supplier status for supplying imported films
to particular cigarette manufacturer.

Manufacturing and sale of non-cigarette-related packaging
materials

Revenue from the Group's manufacturing and sale of non-cigarette-
related packaging materials decreased by approximately HK$28.1
million, or approximately 18.1%, from approximately HK$155.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately
HK$127.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
decrease was consistent with the Group’s production and sales plan
to adjust the Group’s sales mix by switching the manufacturing and
sale of BOPP films from non-cigarette-related packaging BOPP films
to other cigarette BOPP films with a higher gross profit margin.

Turnover

=2
127,306 | 572,249
“18% ; 82%

1155,437
23%

519,546
77%

BENEEES
REEREBEDEEZZNBABREZE2011F12A4
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#12.7% ZEHE2012F12A31H L FERL62.08
BB EARRBBEEZEBEANWE QR ELR
F#EE O ORY) BRAE ([EERF]) BERA
HEFIHMFTEERIEEMELE EE - #F
SENREBFHEEEERNMBEEZE S 5814 -
ZEWADRESER -

EHFTEHEREEME

REEREIETEARMDEM B RE REHEHKRA
HEZE2011F12A31H LFEML155.48 85T
WA H28 1TEEBILHN18.1%EHE2012F12 A
3TEILEFENGI12738EB T - ZERD THEARE
B AEEMEEFEER - NEEFEBIEBOPPER
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Turnover - Cigarette related packaging materials

EXT-TEMBEaRME
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50%

5 267,953
52%

84,791
16%

74,783
13%

B Cioarette related B Non<cigarette related  Total &t [l Cigerette paper boxes [ Anti-counterfeiting films ~ Total i
packaging materials packaging materials 2012 699,555 EERE {2 Se 2012 572,249
BIERBBREME BIERBBREMR 2011 674,983 v . . ) 2011 519,546

Other cigarette films Trading of imported films
Hib B EE EOEEES
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately HK$7.9 million,
or approximately 3.2%, from approximately HK$246.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately HK$254.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group’s gross profit
margin remained stable at approximately 36.4% for the year ended
31 December 2012 when compared to approximately 36.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Gross Profit
EF

[l Cigarette paper boxes
EERE

Trading of imported films:
HEOEEES

. Anti-counterfeiting films Non-cigarette related

B s s packaging materials
B EIERBEM R e
Other cigarette films Total &%
HiEEHE 2012 254,522
2011 246,637

Other revenue

The Group's other revenue recorded a decrease of approximately
HK$6.4 million, or approximately 90.1%, when compared with 2011.
The decrease was a result of the decrease of government grant in
2012.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s distribution costs decreased by approximately HK$5.7
million, or approximately 32.4%, from approximately HK$17.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to approximately
HK$11.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily
due to the decrease of commission paid to the Group’s former
related companies for handling of import and export matters of the
Group (2012: Nil, 2011: approximately HK$6.6 million). The Group’s
subsidiary, Ling Xian Fei Yu, has been designated as the import and
export arm of the Group thereafter. The decrease was partially offset
by the increase of transportation expenses generated by the boost of
sales of the other cigarette films to distant provinces in 2012 when
compared to that in 2011.

Management Discussion and /\nalysis
S5 TH [ S A
B f% /’é DT i &%’U\

ERRERR
REBHNEMBEE2011E12831B EEEND
246.6 B BTG INAT7 OB BEILRLB 2% EEE
2012512 A3 1AL FEML254588 BT - A%
BWENERREZ2012F 124318 LFEREBER
36.4%4 > MEE201MF12A3IBILEEFEN A
36.5% ©

157,775

Hiyg A
RNEBEMEMIBRAE2011ER D L6.4BE B TR
90.1% ° sZTER A T 20129 BT 8R4 BT
g( °

HER DHMA

REENHEE D HEKABEZE2011F12A31H
LEFEMNN768EBTRIHN578 BB ITHL
324%FEE2012F12A31B IEFEENHI1.98 8
B FEHRREEAEEHEOEEMENT
REEFEREQRNMAS R ERQ012F « & -
20114F - H96.6E BB IT) - NEBAIHE R FE %
RFEEHIEEALEBNELORT - ZEBLHA
REBEMBHFAIEMMZ R MY ERFAX
BT AAREBR2012FHE M F@EEEEINE
FOSH S RBE201 1 R DA ER -

e R "



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$23.3 million, or approximately 53.9%, from approximately
HK$43.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
approximately HK$66.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, primarily attributable to the one-off listing expenses charged
to profit or loss (2012: HK$10.1 million, 2011: HK$4.0 million) and
the increase in salary levels for senior administrative staff recruited
for the expansion of the Group’s operation and compliance matters
after the listing of the Group.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately 13.4% from
approximately HK$18.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2011
to approximately HK$21.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, primarily due to increase in average bank loan balances over
the year of 2012 as a result of the continuous expansion of business
operation and production volume.

Income tax

The Group's income tax decreased by approximately HK$6.0 million
from approximately HK$52.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to approximately HK$46.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2012, primarily due to the reversal of deferred liabilities
on withholding tax in respect of dividend paid by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries. This also led to the decrease in effective tax rate when
compared with that of 2011 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
decreased by approximately 13.9% from approximately HK$81.4
million to approximately HK$70.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2012.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the cash and cash equivalent of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$79.2 million denominated
in HKD, RMB, USD compared with approximately HK$63.0 million
as at 31 December 2011. Such increase was mainly due to the cash
inflow of operating activities and proceeds raised by the listing of
the Company offset by the cash outflow of investing and financing
activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s net cash inflow
of operating activities, net cash outflow of investing activities and
net cash outflow of financing activities amounted to approximately
HK$151.9 million, approximately HK$77.1 million and approximately
HK$58.6 million respectively. The Group primarily uses cash inflow of
operating activities and banking facilities to satisfy the requirement
of working capital.

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK$302.2 million denominated in RMB,
among which, approximately HK$37 million are at fixed interest rate.
Borrowing with fixed interest rate has accounted for 12% of total
borrowings. The Group’s gearing ratio, measured by net debt divided
by shareholders’ equity as at the end of the year and multiplied
by 100%, decreased from 99% as at 31 December 2011 to 67%
as at 31 December 2012. It was primarily due to the increase in
shareholders’ equity as a result of the completion of the initial public
offering of the shares of the Company on 13 July 2012.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which give rise to receivables,
payables, cash balances and bank loans that are denominated in US
dollars. Presently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to
the foreign exchange exposure.

As the functional currencies for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB,
these subsidiaries do not expose to any currency risk due to the
exchange rate movement of RMB. For subsidiaries established outside
of the PRC, they have no material financial assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB
currency risk is insignificant.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s total capital
expenditure amounted to approximately HK$27.7 million (2011:
approximately HK$20.3 million), which was used in the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group pledged its lease prepayments,
machinery and building held for own use with net book value of
approximately HK$289.8 million (31 December 2011: approximately
HK$275.2 million) and trade receivable of approximately HK$57.7
million (31 December 2011: Nil) for the purpose of securing loans
with carrying value of approximately HK$277.5 million (31 December
2011: approximately HK$276.3 million).

On 13 March 2012, an equity transfer agreement was entered into
by Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen HK"), a member of
the Group, with Qingdao Beizhou Group Co., Ltd. to acquire the
remaining 30% equity interest in Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology
Co., Ltd at a consideration of RMB39.6 million. The said transfer was
approved by the Bureau of Economic Development of the Qingdao
National High-tech Industrial Development Zone on 3 May 2012 and
the consideration was paid on 24 September 2012.

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in
preparation of the listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group formed after completion of the Reorganisation. Details of
the Reorganisation are set out in the paragraph headed “Corporate
reorganisation” in Appendix V “Statutory and General Information”
to the prospectus dated 29 June 2012 issued by the Company (the
“Prospectus”).

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. (an indirect 51% owned subsidiary of the Company)
("Jiangsu Shuntai”) and Ling Xian Fei Yu entered into an equity
transfer agreement dated 28 August 2012, pursuant to which Ling
Xian Fei Yu agreed to acquire 65% equity interest of Jiangsu Sheen
Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Sheen Colour”)
from Jiangsu Shuntai for cash consideration of RMB17,209,700
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,987,000). The remaining 35%
equity interest of Jiangsu Sheen Colour is owned by Sheen HK (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Accordingly,
Jiangsu Sheen Colour became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group after the completion of the aforesaid transaction
on 13 September 2012. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 August 2012.
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Post Balance Sheet Event

On 11 January 2013, subsequent to the year ended 31 December
2012, Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Huaian Hetai Investment Co. Ltd.,
a third party, has set up a new subsidiary, with equity interests
of 70% and 30% respectively. The subsidiary named Jiangsu
Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd is principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of aluminium foil films for cigarette
packaging.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2011: Nil).

Use of net proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering

On 13 July 2012 (the “Listing Date”), the ordinary shares of the
Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”)
were first listed on the Stock Exchange following the completion of
its initial public offering. 100,000,000 Shares were issued at a price
of HK$1.2 per Share under the initial public offering. On 3 August
2012, the over-allotment option has been exercised by the sole
bookrunner in full. Under the over-allotment option, an aggregate
of 15,000,000 Shares, representing 15% of the Shares initially
being offered under the initial public offering before any exercise
of the over-allotment option, have been allotted and issued by the
Company at HK$1.20 per Share. The aggregated net proceeds from
the initial public offering was HK$110,557,000.

As at 31 December 2012, net proceeds of accumulated approximately
HK$99.65 million has been applied on strategic acquisition,
repayment of a bank loan, expansion of market share, strengthening
product development, enhancing quality management and working
capital, and the remaining of the net proceeds has been deposited
into banks which are intended to be applied in accordance with the
proposed application set out in the “Use of proceeds” section in the
Prospectus.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 395 employees
(as compared with 411 employees as at 31 December 2011) with
total staff cost of approximately HK$47.2 million incurred for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (as compared with approximately
HK$36.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2011). The Group's
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to
market terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted
a pre-IPO share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide
incentive and reward to high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group, details of which are set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10
per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
as at 4:30 p.m. on 28 May 2013, the record date for determining
entitlements of the Shareholders to the proposed final dividend. The
proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at
the AGM and a resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders for
voting at the AGM. If the resolution for the proposed final dividend
is passed at the AGM, the proposed final dividend will be payable on
or about 10 June 2013.

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May
2013.
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PROSPECTS

With over eight months since the listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange in July 2012, the Company has completed most of the
proposed future plans as discussed in the Prospectus. They included:

(i) the payment for an acquisition of the remaining 30% equity
interest in the Group’s subsidiary, Qingdao Ener,

(i) the repayment of a bank loan,

(iii) market expansion, and

(iv) product development and enhancement of quality
management.

In addition, the Group has acquired the remaining 31.85% effective
interest in the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Sheen Colour in 2012.

Going forward, the Group will continue to capture the growth
potential and promote the Group's products in Jiangsu province.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore new business
opportunities for existing products in other provinces so as to
promote a diversified quality customer base by implementing
strategic initiatives and enhancing marketing efforts. In addition, to
cope with the rising cost of raw materials, the Group will strive to
further tighten control over its operating expenses and streamline
the production processes. The Group will continue to grow market
share with its major customers while broadening customer mix in
the PRC market. Further capital will be invested in enhancing the
Group’s product development and capabilities. Besides, there will
be attractive opportunities for cigarette-related packaging industry
during the market consolidation driven by the government policies
and the Group will seek opportunities to acquire other cigarette-
related manufacturers, through selective acquisitions, joint ventures
and/or other strategic investments.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
ESRkEREEERE

Executive Directors #{TE=E

Mr. Guo Yumin (28 £ ), aged 51, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012. He is now
also the director of all our subsidiaries. Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of the
Central Committee of Communist Party of China (FF trb sb BRI} 58 (% E207)
in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since 1998, Mr. Guo has been
engaging in cigarette packaging business and established a strong business
tie with the senior members of some cigarette manufacturers. He brings
extensive business and management experience in commercial business to our
management team.

In 2005, Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of
Commerce and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010,
Mr. Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been its
legal representative since then.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia, an executive Director and is the father of Mr.
Guo Cheng, a senior management staff.

Mr. Guo is the director of Sheen China Group Holdings Inc., Sheen China
Group Holdings Limited, Century Leader Asia Limited, Ling Xian Fei Yu Import
& Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Ling Xian Fei Yu"), Sheen China (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Sheen HK"), Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging Printing Science Technology
Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Shuntai”), Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd
(“Qingdao Ener”), Jiangsu Sheen Color Science Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu
Sheen Color”) and Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging and Printing Science Technology
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Kingtai”) the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Guo is
also the sole director and sole shareholder of Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited,
the controlling Shareholder.
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Ms. Xia Yu (£ /8), aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is the legal representative of Qingdao Ener and she is responsible for
general management of our Group.

Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu Commerce
College (TERRAEHERIER) (which was combined with other colleges to form
Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia had 15 years of
experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business management
and financial management in cigarette packaging business.

Ms. Xia is the director of Sheen HK and Qingdao Ener, the subsidiaries of the
Group.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo and the step-mother of Mr. Guo Cheng, a
senior management staff.
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Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (ZE5), aged 46, has been appointed as an executive
Director and President of the Company with effect from 1 January 2013. Mr.
Zeng is responsible for the overall management and business of the Group.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University (47T A=) with a Bachelor of Physics
degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree of Materials Science from Zhejiang
University in 1991. From 1996 to 2010, Mr. Zeng joined the business unit of a
chemical company, which was first acquired by UCB Films (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd. and
subsequently by Innovia Films (Commercial) Ltd. Mr. Zeng possesses more than 16
years of experience in the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and is familiar with
the practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Mr. Zeng is the director of Qingdao Ener and Jiangsu Kingtai, the subsidiaries of
the Group.
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Mr. He Lijun (f]32%), aged 44, has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2013. Mr. He joined the Group in 2010 and he
is now also the general manager of Jiangsu Shuntai and the vice president
of the Group. Mr. He is responsible for the general operation of the Group’s
production.

Mr. He studied in the department of industrial management and engineering of
the School of Management of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/828K and
graduated in 1989. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering. Before joining
our Group, Mr. He was the vice general manager of a company which also
engaged in, amongst others, cigarette-related packaging, and was responsible
for business administration, human resources management and corporate

governance. Mr. He is familiar with the trade practice of the cigarette-related
industry in the PRC and has extensive personal network.

Mr. He is the director of Jiangsu Shuntai, Qingdao Ener, Jiangsu Sheen Color
and Jiangsu Kingtai, the subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Huang Bo (&), aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on 22
June 2012. Mr. Huang joined our Group since 2009 and he is now responsible
for the financing activities of our Group.

Mr. Huang completed a post-secondary part-time course in economic
management at Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Shandong Province
(PHEIEFEAZER), and graduated in 1996. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Huang
was employed to work at the Qingdao municipal government in economic and
auditing fields. From 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang started working in a
packaging company, and became the chief accounting officer in 2007. In 2009,
Mr. Huang was certified as an accreditation grade senior (BB =X & 4 & &HE)
by International Profession Certification Association (HEXFRZE#E). Mr. Huang

has more than 7 years of experience in financial management in cigarette
packaging trading field.
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Mr. Bau Siu Fung (#/0%), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
on 22 June 2012. Mr. Bau joined the Group in 2011 and he is now also the
company secretary and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Bau is
responsible for financial management and compliance of the Group.

Mr. Bau graduated from Idaho State University with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 10 years of
experience in the accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is currently a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Ms. Fan Qing (5EF5), aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both the
PRC and Hong Kong.

Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business administration from the Graduate
School of Renmin University of China (FEIARKZH#ITET) in 2000. She
obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen stock exchange after completing
a training course for the senior management member of a listed company in
the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president of Shenzhen Capital Group
Co. Ltd. (FRIITAIFILEEE B R A F]) for eight years. Ms. Fan is currently the
chairman of the board of directors of an investment management company in
Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code: $Z002213) (RINEF B ERHRA D B R 2 7).
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Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (75 #), BBs, Jp,, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was admitted as a barrister
and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England and Wales in
1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. He has practiced law for over 30 years and is
a member of the law societies of Hong Kong, Upper Canada and England.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in 1974 and his Juris
Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in Toronto in 1978. Mr. Fong is
appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-appointed
Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is the Chairman of the Hong Kong
Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene and a member of the
Hong Kong Film Development Council. Mr. Fong is currently the independent
non-executive director of Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited (stock code: 124)
(" EEE AR AR, SPG (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 337) (B & (3%
f%) BFR/AE]), China Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204) (&
AR B AT]), China Oilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883) (F ;& H
R#MDBRAR]), and Evergreen International Holdings Limited (stock code:
238) (REBIR (£H) ERAR A A).
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Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (E#E), aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and finance.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in 1993 and a master's degree in professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a certified
public accountant, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, fellow member of CPA Australia and a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lo is a practising
accountant in Hong Kong, and has become the deputy managing partner of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2008. Mr. Lo is currently the independent
non-executive director of Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
125) Gt B EBE AR AR A 7)), North Mining Shares Company Limited (stock
code: 433) (It FREERMH AR F) and China Zhongwang Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1333) (FEBIARMIFERBRAA]).

EEESAE 415 M2012F6A2BER T ABYIFRATEE  ELERE
SR R EEELEELR -

EAEMIIBFESEERETIHERZETBA LN 2000FEEHBETIAESR
EeBELIEN - tERESHT FESHAACEFSE RMNSHIAE
BFRCERARMEEBLIEISHMACEE - BELEATBNRESE -
B2008F K AEXKPH (FH) SHEKAMERARNBTEAZA - EE
EREHEBEBEZERER AT (RHARS : 125) - L FEERHBRAF]
(BRMDREE - 433) RAPBEBHEZERER AR (RMDRSR - 1333) WBLIERTE
$ °

0 SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Senior Management SR EEE

Mr. Guo Cheng (5/5), aged 27, studied in courses of international
trade in RMIT University. Mr. Guo has years of experience in investing
and corporate management of the cigarette packaging material
industry. He is currently the vice president of the Company. Mr. Guo
Cheng is the son of Mr. Guo Yumin and the step-son of Ms. Xia, an
executive Director.

Mr. Dong Zhenghua (%), aged 58, graduated from a self-taught
course in Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University (F
FANELAE) in 1986, and obtained the qualification certification
as an economist (&L%ARM) in 1993. Mr. Dong passed the uniform
examination organised by the Chinese government authorities and
obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser ({>2 X788
fi) in 2003. Mr. Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and
handling corporate-related legal matters. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Dong graduated from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised
by the China University of Political Science and Law (B BEKEZ)
and the Open University of China (R EEE18 KXZ) and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved
by the Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training &
Certification Committee (T#R&E 1B LI AERERFIER
#FZB®). Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the
Group.

Ms. Li Jing (Z28), aged 32, passed the higher education self-taught
examination for economic management of the China University of
Mining and Technology (FEITEZKZ) in 2005. In 2009, Ms. Li
graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of the
Central Committee of Communist Party of China (e s BRH
SR EKIR %), majoring in economic management. Ms. Li joined the
Group since 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen
Colour.

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng (TE:1£), aged 49, graduated from Zhejiang Institute
of Engineering (# T TZF3) (which is currently known as Zhejiang
University of Technology) with a bachelor degree of science
in 1983. Mr. Yu joined the Group in 2002 and is currently the
director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Shuntai and also the
chief technology officer of Jiangsu Shuntai. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in the technology aspect, production and facility
management of the printing related business. Mr. Yu was familiar
with the technology in connection with the printing of cigarette films
and paper boxes.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Tong Xiaomeng (2 #4), aged 36, graduated from Jilin Railway
Economic School (FHMEFEELLBEER) in 1996, majoring in financial
accounting in transportation field. In 2002, Ms. Tong passed the
intermediate level of national examination of department of finance
in the PRC and was issued a certificate to certify her qualification
level in accountancy. Ms. Tong joined the Group in 2008 and is
currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Jiangsu Shuntai.
Ms. Tong possesses extensive years of experience in accounting and
financial management.

Mr. Jiang Chang (7L#5), aged 41, studied applied chemistry (distant-
learning) and graduated from Hubei University in 2000. Mr. Jiang
had engaged in the packaging materials business for more than 10
years and had in-depth experience in the production facilities and the
production management in relation to the manufacturing of BOPP
films, in particular, films for cigarette packaging. Mr. Jiang joined the
Group in 2010. He is currently the general manager of Qingdao Ener
and is responsible for its operation of production process.

Mr. Ma Jin (5%), aged 45, received a master's degree of EMBA
(executive master of business administration) from the Peking
University (3t 5 KE8) in 2009. Mr. Ma has extensive experience in
corporate management of packaging (including cigarette-related
packaging) business and is currently the Vice-sales manager of
Qingdao Ener.

Mr. Zhu Hengjin (5:12§%), aged 26, obtained a certificate of diploma
of hairdressing salon management from Headmasters Advanced
Academy in 2008. In 2011, Mr. Zhu joined the Group and currently
the human resources manager of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Directors continuously observe the principles
of good corporate governance in the interests of shareholders
and devote considerable effort to identifying and formalizing best
practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code from the date of listing of the Company on
the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, except for the
deviation from code provisions A.2.1 and A.1.8 of the Code as stated
below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2012, the Company only had Mr. Guo Yumin as the
Chairman of the Board but did not have a separate position of an
officer who performed the role of chief executive of the Company.
This deviated from code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Guo Yumin, who acted as the chairman of the Board and the
executive Director, was also responsible for overall management and
formulation of business strategy of the Group. The Board would
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Group. The Board considered that this structure would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Group. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management who were in charge
of different functions complemented the role of the chairman and
chief executive. The Board believed that this structure was conducive
to strong and consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate
efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code and had appointed Mr. Zeng Xianyang
to be the executive Director and the President of the Company with
effect from 1 January 2013. As President of the Company, Mr. Zeng
Xianyang would perform the role of chief executive of the Company.
With Mr. Guo Yumin as the chairman of the Company and Mr.
Zeng Xianyang as the President of the Company, the Company had
complied with code provision A.2.1 of the Code starting from 1
January 2013. The division of responsibilities between chairman and
the chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out in
writing.
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Code Provision A.1.8

Under the code provision A.1.8 of the Code, an issuer should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its Directors. With regular and timely communications among the
Directors and the management of the Group, the management of
the Group believes that all potential claims and legal actions against
the Directors can be handled effectively, and the possibility of actual
litigation against the Directors is low. The Company will consider to
make such an arrangement as and when it thinks necessary.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised
as follows:

Appointment, Re-Election and Retirement of the
Directors

On 31 December 2012, Mr. Zeng Xiangyang was appointed as an
executive Director and President of the Company with effect from 1
January 2013. Mr. He Lijun was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2013.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’'s Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/
her appointment and any Director appointed by the Board as an
additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles of the Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, Mr. He Lijun and Mr. Bau Siu Fung will retire as
Directors at the AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu
Fung, all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and may be terminated by either party by
giving at least three months’ prior written notice.
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Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from the Listing Date and may be terminated by either party by
giving at least three months’ prior written notice.

Each of Mr. Zeng Xiangyang and Mr. He Lijun, all being executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of commencing from 1 January 2013 and expiring on 12 July
2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ prior written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which
are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)

Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)  (with effect from 1 January 2013)
Mr. He Lijun (with effect from 1 January 2013)
Mr. Huang Bo

Mr. Bau Siu Fung
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

The brief biographic details of and relationship between the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 28.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1)
and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All
independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board's primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests
of the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from
its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group's strategic
plan, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed
and discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.
In compliance with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14
days’' notice has been given for a regular Board meeting to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers
of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors within reasonable
time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings. Directors are free to
contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions
will only be taken after deliberation at Board meetings. Directors
who are considered having conflict of interests or material interests
in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be
counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on
the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
on the final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board
meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.
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Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee

B EHBEHE2012F12A31BRTHARTESS

meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings and general meetings €i#%  BHXZEC€ % FHWEEeeaRKREKX
of the Company held from the Listing Date to 31 December 2012 are & HFEFHBEMIOT ¢
summarized as follows:
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board committee Committee Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
ES8eE ENZE8S8E FMZESE€E REZEEER e -1
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) DERSEE (18) 33 N/A TiEFR n 11 N/A FER
Ms. Xia Yu BRut 33 N/A NEf N/A TNER N/A TE A N/A TER
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President) LRGEE (Fi783)
(with effect from 1 January 2013) (F013F1R1BER) N/A FiEf N/A Ef N/A B N/A i@ N/A TiEf
Mr. He Lijun WyB%E
(with effect from 1 January 2013) (R2013%F1 1B 4%) N/A TNER N/A TNER N/A TNEH N/A TER N/A @R
Mr. Huang Bo BREE 313 NA FER N/A FER N/A FER NA FER
Mr. Bau Siu Fung EI Vit 33 N/A g N/A TR N/A R iEf N/A g
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Ms. Fan Qing BERT 33 22 17N 7n N/A A
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix kil 313 2 N/A i@ N/A T N/A T
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BERLE 313 0 n 171 N/A TR
Board Committees BEEZEE
The Board has established specific committees, namely the Company's &BE@EKUBETEEES SR AELAATINEZE

audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which
are available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist
them in the efficient implementation of their functions. Specific
responsibilities have been delegated to the above committees.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
the code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to review the material investment, capital
operation and material financial system of the Company; to review
the accounting policy, financial position and financial reporting
procedures of the Company; to communicate with external audit
firms; to assess the performance of internal financial and audit
personnel; and to assess the internal control of the Company. The
Audit Committee currently has three members comprising Mr. Lo Wa
Kei, Roy (Chairman), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being
independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results
of the Group for 2012 and the 2012 interim results and report of the
Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s internal
controls for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report,
and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2012. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee
at the Audit Committee meetings are set out above.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22
June 2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms
of the remuneration package of each Director and member of
senior management, and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any adjustment thereof; and (ii) reviewing and evaluating
the performance of individual executive Directors for determining
the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them. No Director shall
participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members,
namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both
of which are independent non-executive Directors. and Mr. Guo
Yumin, an executive Director. The majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference
to their respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and
general market conditions. The Company has adopted the model
to make recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and the members of senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meeting are set
out above.

At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives
and reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
remuneration packages for the proposed executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the review of the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed change, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr.
Guo Yumin (Chairman), an executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which are independent non-executive
Directors. The majority of members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2012. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, reviewed
the qualifications of the proposed executive Directors and other
related matters of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent
to the Company.

Professional Development of the Directors

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference
materials to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business
operations and Board's policies.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2012, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin,
Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo, Mr. Bau Siu Fung, Ms. Fan Qing, Mr.
Fong Wo, Felix, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant
record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to
time to ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under
the Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating any suitable training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the
year ended 31 December 2012 falls within the following band:
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The statement by the auditors of the
Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is
set out in the report of the independent auditor’s report contained
in this annual report. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company engaged KPMG as its external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services for reviewing
interim results to be performed by KPMG and considered that these
non-audit services have no adverse effect on the independence of
the auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors. During the year ended 31
December 2012, the fee payable to KPMG in respect of its statutory
audit services provided to the Company was RMB850,000. Fees for
non-audit services for the same period was RMB650,000.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed
to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks to which they are
exposed.
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Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management of the Group maintains and monitors the internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. The Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group and is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the
Code in respect of internal controls during the year ended 31 December
2012.

The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an
Extraordinary Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities
and direction of the Group, information about the Group has
been provided to the Shareholders through financial reports and
announcements. The Company has established its own corporate
website www.sheentai.com as a channel to facilitate effective
communication with its Shareholders and the public. The Company
will continue to enhance communications and relationships with its
shareholders and investors. A shareholders communication policy was
adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code provision E.1.4 of the
Code.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make
enquiries directly to the Company through the following e-mail:
ivan.bau@sheentai.com.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

Ivan Bau

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre. No.18 Fenwick Street,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: ivan.bau@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the
Board and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where
appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association of the Company for including a resolution at an
extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and procedures are
set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’ Right to
Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person (other than a retiring Director) shall be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the
Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director is posted on the website of the Company.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

On 22 June 2012, the Company has adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had been
uploaded to the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, there had been no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company during the Year.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders this annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year").

Group Reorganization

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012. Pursuant to a
reorganization scheme to rationalize the structure of the Group in
preparation for the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 21 June 2012. For details of the group
reorganization, please refer to the paragraph headed “Corporate
Reorganisation” in Appendix V “Statutory and General Information”
to the Prospectus of the Company.

The Shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 13 July 2012.

Use of Proceeds

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date by way of placing (the “Placing”) and
public offer (the “Public Offer”) (together, the “Share Offer”) of a
total of 100,000,000 Shares at the offer price of HK$1.20 per Share
(the “Listing”). On 3 August 2012, the sole bookrunner of the Share
Offer fully exercised the over-allotment option and the Company
issued an additional 15,000,000 new Shares at HK$1.20 per Share.

For detailed use of the aforesaid proceeds, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Use of net proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering” under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report.

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’'s
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 57 of this annual
report.

Final Dividends

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HK$0.10 per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 15
May 2013 to 20 May 2013, both days inclusive, for the purpose of
identifying Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 14 May 2013.

For determining entitlement to the final dividend (if approved at the
AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2013 to 28 May 2013, both days inclusive. The record date
will be 28 May 2013. The latest time to lodge transfer documents for
registration will be 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2012
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements in this annual report
and the Prospectus, is set out on page 132. This summary does not
form part of the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Year.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$70.0 million (2011: HK$81.4 million) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant Investment

On 28 August 2012, Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing Science
Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (“Jiangsu Shuntai”) and Ling Xian Fei Yu Import & Export
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (“Ling Xian Fei Yu”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which Ling Xian Fei Yu agreed to acquire
65% equity interest in Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology
Co., Ltd. a subsidiary of the Company owned as to 65% by Jiangsu
Shuntai and as to 35% by Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), from Jiangsu
Shuntai for cash consideration of RMB17,209,700 (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,987,000) (the “Acquisition”). Upon completion
of the Acquisition on 13 September 2012, Jiangsu Sheen Colour
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
acquisition does not constitute a transaction which is discloseable
under Chapter 14 or Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the
Company. For further details of the Acquisition, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 August 2012.

During the Year, apart from the group reorganization as set out in
the paragraph headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in Appendix V
“Statutory and General Information” to the Prospectus, and save
as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition, disposal or
investment by the Group.

Material Related Parties Transactions

There were no connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions between the Group and its connected persons (as
defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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The material related party transactions in relation to the key
management personnel remuneration as disclosed in Note 23(a)
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report are
connected transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.31(6) of the Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions in relation to the amount
due to controlling Shareholder and Director — Mr. Guo Yumin as
disclosed in Note 23(c) to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report are connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report did not fall under the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions in 2013

On 28 February 2013, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Ener”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a written agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Justo”), pursuant
to which Qingdao Justo purchased approximately 141 tonnes of
cigarette films from Qingdao Ener with a total consideration of
RMB3,188,344.48.

Qingdao Ener had been selling cigarette films to Qingdao Ener
since 2000. The entering into of the Agreement by the Group to
sell cigarette films is to continue the business relationship between
Qingdao Ener and Qingdao Justo. The Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) consider that the Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and are on normal
commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation, and consider that
the transaction contemplated thereunder are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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To the best knowledge of the Directors and after making reasonable &AEEEHAEEABRBRENA - AU 5= EH
enquiry, the equity interests of Qingdao Justo are owned indirectly as &£EBRHERAT (FIHE]) HEKEGSEE
to 30% by Shenzhen Jinjia Color Printing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen  230%MiZHE - R RIS = T B I&IESR (K
Jinjia”), while Shenzhen Jinjia also holds 49% equity interests in /A& R A51 %R E &I M B D F) 49% ) BR#E o
Jiangsu Shuntai (an indirect 51% owned subsidiary of the Company). At BIELFTHE - SE2E2A 75|92
Qingdao Justo is hence an associate of Shenzhen lJinjia and thus A - EfiAKRARMEET o BIEZRHE TS
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The {THIXSEEEBAXSHEBAMHTER  S85%
transaction amount contemplated under the Agreement, when 3 E2013F1A1ARASESEHERESEENS
aggregated with the past transaction amount for the sale of cigarette K IFEBER S - WABTHE - N MEE
films by Qingdao Ener to Qingdao Justo from 1 January 2013, EBHMR T MERGCET FHHRINE14AZ BB
constituted a continuing connected transaction subject to reporting,  SZIREEHLEBIIRE ©

announcement and annual review requirements, but exempt from

independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the HE#E— S5 BHLEAAT A AE201352A
Company dated 28 February 2013. 28H 2 Affi e

Major Customers and Suppliers FEREFRMER

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for AEEAAATFEZFLHEERENERNFEHENE
approximately 75% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the %875% ' HABERASAR NS ER L RFEEE
largest customer included therein amounted to 58% of the total $4%%858% ~ AEE AR AHEFNREREOER
sales for the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers FEAERET% @ ERBERAEE S AMHER
accounted for approximately 67% of the total purchases for the  HIEEBEZE(SAF/E BIRIETE36% ©

Year and purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein

amounted to 36% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders ZEESNEF M2 BEASRE (RESEH - &
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than HAAATREHITRAS%IU L) BMEALEFRAR
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the B R {tfERHES (F Mz -

Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

Directors =

As at the date of this report, the Directors are: MAFHRAH EFFBMT ¢

Executive Directors: HTESE

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BERSEE (F/F)

Ms. Xia Yu BRIzt

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (President)  (with effect from 1 January 2013) BrakskE (F74E5) (R2013F1A1BER)
Mr. He Lijun (with effect from 1 January 2013) (ERVE=g e (A2013F1 A1 B AR
Mr. Huang Bo HEREE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung S/ NE kA

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUKHITES

Ms. Fan Qing et

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FHREE

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EEESLE
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Article of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/
her appointment and any Director appointed by the Board as an
additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles of the Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, Mr. He Lijun and Mr. Bau Siu Fung will retire as
Directors at the AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Huang Bo and Mr. Bau Siu
Fung, all being executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from the Listing Date and may be terminated by either party by
giving at least three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Zeng Xiangyang and Mr. He Lijun, all being executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of commencing from 1 January 2013 and expiring on 12 July
2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior
Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management
are disclosed in the section headed "Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 20 to 28 of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors Emoluments are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.
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Interests of Directors in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any
interest in a business which competes or likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The Board has established a committee (the “Committee”)
comprising all the independent non-executive Directors which
was delegated with the authority to review the non-competition
undertakings (the “Non-competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen
Tai Group Holding Limited (JEZ=&EIERER A7) (“Sheentai BVI")
and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-competition
entered into by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour of the Company,
dated 28 June 2012. The Committee was not aware of any non-
compliance of the Non-competition Undertakings given by Sheentai
BVI and Mr. Guo since the date of the aforesaid deed of non-
competition and up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme
operated by the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
the employee in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$329
million.
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Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a)

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
the associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they are taken

EERRG - RO RESNERIXR

(a)

2012F12A831H » AR RIESB L HZRmTH
ABRARQBIREEMEEEZE (FEREF
RAEBE GO ([#EHRAEED]) EXVE) 1
B BERDRESFF %&ﬁ;ﬁ*ﬁf*ﬁ ;
&Hﬂfﬂﬂﬂ%XV*B%7&8“*E%H@$

B FTE S KR (BIEREE %&H&qfﬂm
PIRZ SN E 1ESAR AR 2 TR A
£)  NEREFE %&Hﬁf{wu%%zﬂﬁ%a

or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were REZ G B s ARz & ﬁ SARE EH
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered HEZ FTHATIESEITES %E’ﬁ? AESF A
in the register referred to therein, or were required, pursuant BHEARANT RIS EAARNT
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
(i) Long Position in the Shares and in the Shares (i) REROzFRRKRSG
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
interested percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature =Y o) interest
EEpE B HE ERROEE ERAILAH
Mr. Guo Interest of a controlled corporation 300,000,000 72.29%
I (Note 1)
Rt EERERS (i)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 4,900,000 1.18%
BEmBEA (Hit2)
Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4) 1,500,000 0.36%
feBem (Hit3k4)
Xia Yu ("Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5) 304,900,000 73.47%
BErR (TEx+]) Pt S (H77E5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 1,500,000 0.36%
BEmBEA (H723)
Zeng Xiangyang (“Mr. Zeng") Beneficial owner (Note 6) 500,000 0.12%
gk ([Bx4]) EmEB A (Hite)
Interest of spouse (Note 7) 5,774,000 1.39%
FeBrEs (Wit7)
Huang Bo Beneficial owner (Note 8) 500,000 0.12%
v BEmBEA (H:28)
Bau Siu Fung Beneficial owner (Note 9) 500,000 0.12%
Ll BmBEAA (H:E9)
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(i)

Notes:

Directors’ Report

EERHE
Long Position in the Shares of Associated Corporation (i) REBZEIEROZEFR
Number of
share held/
Name of associated interested Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature E= I o) interest
EEnE L B3, HE ERROEE KA
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
Bl EmEEA
Ms. Xia Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse (Note 4) 1 100%
BEx+ foiBiEss (fat4)
BE3E
Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of 1. 2 % & B %5 ¥ B Sheentai BVI R BB %17

Sheentai BVI. Therefore, Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all 300,000,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the
purposes of the SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

This represents the 500,000 Shares which may be allotted and 2.
issued to Mr. Guo upon exercise of the options granted to him

under the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company

on 22 June 2012 (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”), and the

4,400,000 Shares held by Mr. Guo.

This represents the 500,000 Shares which may be allotted and 3.
issued to Ms. Xia upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to her, and the 1,000,000 Shares held by Ms. Xia.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is 4.
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Ms. Xia
is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is 5.
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Guo
is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted and 6.
issued to Mr. Zeng upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted to him.

This represents the number of Shares held by Ms. Gao Yanjie, 7.
the spouse of Mr. Zeng. Mr. Zeng is deemed, or taken to be,

interested in all Shares held by Ms. Gao Yanjie for the purpose of

the SFO.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted 8.
and issued to Mr. Huang Bo upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to him.

This represents the number of Shares which may be allotted and 9.
issued to Mr. Bau Siu Fung upon exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted to him.

A Bt BEZFHFRBERD - 2L
A W58 B EkE YER Sheentai BVIE B KT A
300,000,000 &M Bz - BEESR
Sheentai BVIFYME —E& = -

1:500,0000% A% 19 8 AR IR AR A R 52201246 A
RARMzERAFBEBERESE (Y
RAFBERBAESE]) mEiXERER
WA AT (5 14 Pl A 1) HL Bl B R BT RIARD

#HE - 2k AEEH4,400,0000 815

11£500,000/% i (D fE M B 2 TR H & X2 FH
BERERERITE R AL M AR R BT
HIRMEE - E21T35H1,000,0000 %1% °

MEERERX TR - Hit - RIBEF K
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So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2012,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had
interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or, who are, directly or indirectly, interested in

BEERA - B2012F128318 - L TA L
(EXQ@BFEEZARREETLESITHRA
BERIN) R SRR G P IRIEFEHF K
HERBIEXVEDFE2 R E3D B MK X AR A
ARREBZAHBENERSAR S EESM
BHRA WA R NMEAER T EARE T
HApK 8 ARIMRE RS EIREME AR

10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital AREE10% A FHyRER ¢
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any other member of the Group:
The Company VNN
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
interested percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature iR shareholding
£18 B HE ERBROBE REB D LA
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 300,000,000 72.29%
E=EAA
Other Members of the Group AEBHNHMRE AT
Name of Percentage of
Name of subsidiary shareholder Capacity/Nature shareholding
MELR AR REREME By HE REB DL
Jiangsu Shuntai Shenzhen Jinjia Beneficial owner 49%
T ERIEZR Color Printing EnEAA
Group Co., Ltd.
RN FF DR B AR D
BRAF]
Jiangsu Shuntai Qiao Lu Zhu Interest of a controlled corporation 49%
LERIEZR SET REGEEER

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures EZWREROIESHER

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ [ X [EZREG - HEKRH RESWEEIA
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and & ] —ERFFREEIN  REAFETAEE xQ
debentures” above, at no time during the Year was the Company, @] E3ZRR AT - MEB AT FE R E Q= T
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to  ST{E@AIZH - FAAREFT N HZFSTHA B 3 HE
any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executive of % A 0% i@ U B AN 2 &) gl (E {a] E )R A B 82 89 B 17
the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means of the  sif&5MmER -

acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other

body corporate.

Share Option Schemes iR T8

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) BEXRAMBEIBRETE
Pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre- BHE2012F6 A22 AFMB B X AR EERE
IPO Share Option Scheme"”) adopted on 22 June 2012, the PRt (B AFEESaERERE])
Company had granted options to subscribe for 10,000,000 KA R E 6 7] 3R HE 10,000,0000% A% 17 #Y i A 1
Shares to employees, directors, consultants and advisers of our BRI AREERE TS KW ANRER -
Group.
Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted RAFERAE - RIEE AR EEAERET
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this ElHARITEORBIEFBS AT ¢

annual report:

Number of
options Outstanding
granted on Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at the
22 June 2012 since date since date since date date of this
7A2012%5F of grant of grant of grant annual report
Name of grantee 6H22H BERAH HERHH BERHH RAFIHRAEH
ERAME ERBEREHE 217 EEd! BR e RATBE
Directors £%
Mr. Guo A 500,000 - - - 500,000
Xia Yu B8 500,000 - - - 500,000
Zeng Xiangyang H[AF5 500,000 - - - 500,000
Huang Bo &K 500,000 - - - 500,000
Bau Siu Fung #@/N& 500,000 - - - 500,000
Employees and advisers 7,500,000 - - - 7,500,000
ES R
Total At 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000

wrznsmanaa | =2-=r5i
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Note:

The subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.6029 per Share. Options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall vested in 5 tranches in the proportion of
10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% on 14 July 2013, 14 July 2014, 14
July 2015, 14 July 2016 and 14 July 2017, and shall expire on 13 July
2018, being the sixth anniversary of the date of initial listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is set out in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. No options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme from the date of its adoption
to the date of this report. A summary of the principal terms
and conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out in
Appendix V to the Prospectus.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed approximately 395
full-time staff members. The Directors and senior management
receive compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances,
benefits in kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our
performance. The Group also established the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report.
When reviewing and determining the specific remuneration packages
for the executive Directors and senior management, the Company
takes into consideration factors such as their individual performance,
qualification, experience and seniority, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The Group determines the staff's remuneration
based on factors such as qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 40 of this annual
report.
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Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from the independent non-executive
Directors confirmations of independence (including an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent of the
Company.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float since the Listing Date to the date
of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Post Balance Sheet Event

On 11 January 2013, Jiangsu Sheen Colour and Huaian Hetai
Investment Co. Ltd., a third party, has set up a new subsidiary, with
equity interests of 70% and 30% respectively. The subsidiary named
Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd is principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of aluminium foil films for cigarette
packaging.

Auditors

KPMG has acted as auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Company has not changed its external auditors
since its listing in July 2012 and up to the date of this annual report.

KPMG will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A

resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR E

cbnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen
Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 56 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BEFZEREBERQABDRRE L ZHEAMRE
(RESHSEME L HRLA])

EEERHNESR1I3MHIEREREBGRA
T (Fi/‘w) MEMNBAR (HE[EEE]) 245
ém%ﬁ%'$$a%mmu¢uﬂmEZha
AR BRI REEEZB EFEZHGE2EKE
R BRAEZEHRRGEHSRER UREE
SETRBE R EATEER -

EENGeMBRBRARE SR
REAEFARBEELSIMAGRMZIELYNB
HAARBEARGIZEERTARREE
IR ZFEAMBRER  ARNEZTALSBLE
ARAA RIS - DAGEAR RSB M IS RN S K
PRl SRR M BB E R SRR A -

BB 2 B1E
EEZEARBEBEERTEFHZSREMBRRIE
HER  AER %ﬁT({’Eﬁi/\) EBEZE
R BREDSNIEBEMAR - BEFUTHARSEZ
Wﬁﬁ{ﬂﬂﬁm}\iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁg °

ESCREBEFESAMAGEM 2 BB RBERE
TEZ BLENBEREFETERRE LRI

ETERTIE UEEREFASMBHRRES
FHREEMERBREL -



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
including the assessment of the risks of material

statements.
judgement,
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central,

Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
meElEE

EZE20126F12 A3 BIEEFE (BT ABA
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012 2011
M2 20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Turnover % 3 699,555 674,983
Cost of sales &SRR (445,033) (428,346)
Gross profit ER 254,522 246,637
Other revenue and net income E A RF s 4 16,188 26,003
Distribution costs 2 SR A (11,941) (17,642)
Administrative expenses ITHFAX (66,459) (43,169)
Other operating expenses H AR & RIS (844) (17)
Profit from operations RS 191,466 211,812
Finance costs B 75 A AR 5(a) (21,085) (18,603)
Profit before taxation AR 5 170,381 193,209
Income tax FTiS it 6(a) (46,453) (52,453)
Profit for the year F R A 123,928 140,756
Attributable to: IR AL FELL
Equity shareholders of the Company 7R RIHEZE AR 70,076 81,426
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 53,852 59,330
Profit for the year FRIER 123,928 140,756
Earnings per shares BREF
Basic and diluted (HKD) BEARREE (BT) 9 0.17 0.20

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements. F|EFH R FE3F 131 BT BHREW T 2 A BHE
EVARRK BB 1D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SmEZHRER

HZE20126F12 A3 BILEFE BT ABA)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year F A=A ' 123,928 \ 140,756
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKE
for the year
Exchange differences on translation of #E B A R EERIAIE X =5
financial information of subsidiaries 2,602 15,557
Total comprehensive income FREMKREHEEE
for the year 126,530 156,313
Attributable to: BT AL HEMR
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ ZNQ &#E AR R 72,634 83,895
Non-controlling interests =R = 53,896 72,418
Total comprehensive income FRAZHKSEHE
for the year 126,530 156,313

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements.  F|E R F63E 1318 BB R = M 5T 2 AN 3R &
EVAEAK EB 1 ©

winEanaT | =-=58 <G



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

R2012F12 4318 (ABTTAEN)

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012 2011
M2 R201245 720114
$'000 $'000
; FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE \
Fixed assets BEEE
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BE KRR 10 335,287 340,790
— Interests in leasehold land held for — RIBEKLEHEFIEG AN
own use under operating lease M E LA 10 44,442 45,420
Intangible assets mREE 169 222
Deferred tax assets FERIEEE 19 2,317 1,900
382,215 388,332
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 11 105,579 120,254
Trade and other receivables B 5 W GRTE K B A R MR IR 12 223,157 257,718
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREFHIEH 13 79,180 63,013
407,916 440,985
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 e 5 E Rk B R 5R0E 15 70,439 113,103
Bank loans RITER 16 277,504 154,188
Current taxation BNHEAR IR 19 19,676 18,938
Y N 367,619 286,229
Net currentassets =~~~ h®&E®® 40,297 154,756
Total assets less current liabilities RZEERABHERE 422,512 543,088
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
4 A B T YRS
e SRR R

20129128318 (ABTAER)
At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012 2011
s R2012%F 720114
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITEN 16 24,667 146,787
Deferred tax liabilities RIER BB E 19 2,272 5,498
Deferred government grant EIE AT B 1,040 -
R SO 27,979 152,285
NET ASSETS 2EE 394,533 390,803
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRK#HE
Share capital/capital AEA &R 20 4,150 69,318
Reserves ] 329,355 171,858
Total equity attributable to equity 42D BEFRREGEERS
shareholders of the Company 333,505 241,176
Non-controlling interests IR R 61,028 149,627
TOTAL EQUITY AR 394,533 390,803

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

March 2013.

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

Directors
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Statement of Financial Position

B EEAR T &

R2012F12 4318 (ABTTAEN)

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2012
B & 20125
$'000
; FHET
Non-current assets FREEE \
Investment in subsidiaries KB AR RIRE 14 84,955
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R W GRTE & B A R U GRIE 12 121,957
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRELEFHBHIEE 13 119
122,076
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables = HZEAFEARAMEMSTR 0 15 92
Net currentassets =~~~  h®B&EE®® 121,984
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHER 206,939
NET ASSETS 2EE 206,939
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAR G
Share capital &N 20 4,150
Reserves s 20 202,789
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 206,939

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

March 2013.

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

—_— — — — ~—

Directors

BV AR R D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREBR

HZE20126F12 A3 BILEFE BT ABA)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAABERREL
Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory Exchange  Retained Sub  controlling Total
Note Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits total interests equity

fifst &% RHEE AFRR AERR  ENRR  RERA NEOFERER  H8&
§/000 $/000 §/000 §/000 §/000 §'000 §/000 §/000 $/000
TEr TR AR TEn  TEx TEnr  TEn  TEn  TAn

At 1 January 2011 ®2011£181A 69,318 - 3,900 17,822 (1,686) 67,927 157,281 118,054 275,335
Changes in equity for 2011~ BZ0NMEERLH
Profit for the year FR T = - - - - 81,426 81,426 59330 140,756
Other comprehensive income  Eft2 Az - - - - 2,469 - 2,469 13,088 15,557
Total comprehensive income 2 EMZEEH - - = = 2,469 81,426 83,895 72418 156313
Dividends to shareholders RERE 20(b) - - - - - - - (40,845) (40,845)
Appropriation to statutory reserve AR ZEE B 20(dl)iif) = = = 13,583 = (13,583) = = =
At 31 December 2011 W2011%128318 69,318 - 3,900 31,405 783 135,770 241,176 149,627 390,803
1 January 2012 H2012£151A 69,318 - 3,900 31,405 783 135,770 241,176 149,627 390,803 )
Changes in equity for 2012 20125 %28
Profit for the year FREF] - - - - - 70,076 70,076 53,852 123,928
Other comprehensive income £t 2E Mz - - - - 2,558 - 2,558 44 2,602
Total comprehensive income 2 ENEAHE - - - - 2558 70076 72634 5389 126,530
Dividends to shareholders RERS 20(b) - - - - - (103,987) (103,987)  (88,643)  (192,630)
Appropriation to statutory reserve R ZE 20(a)ii) - - - 3,263 - (3,263) - - -
Avrising from reorganisation EBEL 20(d)i) | (66,318) - 62,533 - - - (3,785) - (3,785)
Net proceeds from issue of RERDREERET

ordinary shares upon initial RS IIERE

public offering (MR ETRE)

net off issuing cost 20(c)iv) 1150 123,696 - - - - 124,846 - 124,846
Equity settled share-based DRALE R T

transactions ] 20(a)(iv) - - 389 - - - 389 - 389
Acquisition of non-controling ~ WE—RIBAFN

interests g - - 2,232 - - - 2232 (53.852)  (51,620)
At 31 December 2012 #2012512A31A 4,150 123,696 69,054 34,668 3,341 98,596 333,505 61,028 394,533

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements. TR E63E 131 BENM BRERM T 2 AM B RS

R AR D ©
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HZE2012F12A318 EFE (UAUBTTAEEA)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of

fixed assets and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Interest received
Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net proceeds from issue of ordinary
shares upon initial public offering,
net off issuing cost

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

REES
BEMBRE
BN

REFHREREFHE

REES
BEREEEREBIEENIA

& Bl E B EMSFIR
EUHLE
Ui FE1E i o

REZFS AR EFH

BMEEH
&SP S 5008
BRI
ERHME

EfERE
RERARBERHTERR

Note

=g
=
R

FTSSRFE (FNERFEITRCA)

RMETBRAREFE

RERBRESEEEFEM
(EY) F8

FOANRERAESEEEHE

«
L

EREE

FRNRERASEEEE

The notes on pages 63 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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2012
20125
$'000
FH&T

201,290
(49,349)

151,941

(25,975)
116
340

(51,620)

(77,139)

221,396
(220,166)

(21,085)
(163,618)

124,846

(58,627)

16,175

63,013

(8)

79,180

2011
20114
$'000
FHET
167,999
(46,077)

121,922

(64,624)

433

(64,191)

104,848
(106,946)
(18,603)
(40,845)

(61,546)

(3,815)

63,778

3,050

63,013

THREBEIBNENTBEHRRMERAM B RS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February
2012 and registered as an exempted company with limited
liability under Companies law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company
and its subsidiaries hereinafter are collectively referred to as the
“Group”.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 21 June
2012 (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the group structure
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding
company of the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2012 (the
“Prospectus”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 13 July 2012.

The companies that took part in the Reorganisation now
comprising the Group were controlled by an ultimate equity
shareholder, Mr Guo Yumin (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
before and after the Reorganisation. The control is not
transitory and, consequently there was a continuation of the
risks and benefits to the Controlling Shareholder and, therefore,
the Reorganisation is considered as a business combination
under common control. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared using the merger basis of accounting as if
the Group had always been in existence. The net assets of the
companies now comprising the Group are consolidated using
the existing book values from the Controlling Shareholder’s
perspective.

A S HR 2R Y

(REBEREBEIN - LUBTTAER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION (CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements relating to the
consolidated income statements, the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statements of
the Group include the results of operations of the companies
now comprising the Group for the years presented (or since the
dates of their respective dates of incorporation/establishment
where this is a shorter period) as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the years presented. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2011 as set out in financial report has been
prepared to present the state of affairs of the companies now
comprising the Group as at that date as if the current group
structure had been in existence as at that date.

All material intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), rounded to the nearest thousand.
Measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI AR

(R=HIEHAN

(Expressed in

2 SIG

A TTAREAL)
Hong Kong dollars)

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. None of the
developments are relevant to the Group’'s financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

In assessing control,

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transaction,
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised

are

gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2(I) or (m)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at lost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(R=HIEHAN

AT R EAL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

2(1)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 20 years

= Plant and machinery 10 — 20 years

- Office equipment and 3 - 5 years
other fixed assets

- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

- Leasehold land held for own use 50 years

under operating lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(9)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and machinery and
equipment under installation and testing. Construction in
progress is stated in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)). The cost
includes cost of construction, cost of purchased plant
and equipment and other direct costs plus borrowing
costs which include interest charges and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings used
to finance these projects during the construction period,
to the extent that these are regarded as an adjustment to
borrowing costs (see note 2(t)).

Construction in progress is not depreciated until such
time as the assets are completed and substantially ready
for their intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

- Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

2

BEX

(f)

(9)

Notes to the Financial Statements
b E N

(BrS B8N - ABTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 BE (#)

EEIR

ERETRERZTFNYE  BEER
o ARRZEMBFA P M2 R -
T 7 T AR 12 BN R RY (8 5 18 A B TS AR
RFIER (R E2) - RABIERE
KA - EREERE &R EAKA R
HEKA  2NERERZRELZSE
HBSEINEERMELNNE &R E
PE X E BB RAA - AR REHE
RRARFERR (RHEE2(1) -

HERIREEEETILRD A BERTE
RZEAI T EHRITE -

BILEE

REBATMBNETL EERKAR R
BiE (At AERFHRBER) RRE
B1RYIAR (R EE23) - BRAAMEL
BENFAXEEEENRERRMAX -

BB G R A8 e\ 8 & 3 5H
EREBEEMRAERFHANERERE
BmRPME - ATEBERAIEASE
HETEERARERS REEH -
HAE A EAEHMT

- = 54

BIEMERIDEIEEFRA ©

wrznsmanas | =2-=r5i <)



Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

0] Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

(i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating

lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and trade
and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries and current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events.

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI AR

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and trade
and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and trade
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- intangible assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Hong Kong dollars)

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method,
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to

less allowance for

related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

In such

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contribution to
define contributions retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material,
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

provisions are stated at the present

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WIS R M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries outside mainland China is Hong Kong
dollars and the functional currency of the subsidiaries in
mainland China is Renminbi. The results of operations
with functional currency other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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AT R EAL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(o]

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

(e)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

2 EX

(v)
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3 EXBERIHBESE

Turnover (a) &%
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing AEENETZEBRETFENELER
and supply of cigarette packaging materials in the PRC. HEEEAEME -
Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less EEEREEMEEEERRE 1
returns, discounts and value added taxes and other sales MIZER LR EMBEER - RAFEER
taxes. The amount of each significant category of revenue EERERNSEZWAERNNSEL
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: T 8
2012 2011
20125 20114F
$'000 % $'000 %
FET % FHET %

Manufacturing and sales of EEBERERE

cigarette-related packaging Mk

materials

— Cigarette paper boxes —BEERE 286,834 41.0 267,953 397

— Anti-counterfeiting films — s 74,783 10.7 84,791 12.6

— Other cigarette films — Hib BEHRE 148,606 21.2 111,785 16.6
Sub-total /INEF 510,223 72.9 464,529 68.9
Trading of imported films EOEBEEZES 62,026 8.9 55,017 8.1
Manufacturing and sales of EHIEEE R

non-cigarette-related B2

packaging materials 127,306 18.2 155,437 23.0
Total CEl 699,555 100.0 674,983 100.0
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI AR

(R=HIEHAN

AT R EAL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Turnover (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2012, there were
2 (2011:
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues. Revenues from

2) customers with whom transactions have

sales of cigarette packages and films to these customers,
including sales to entities which are known to the Group
to be under common control with these customers
(i.e. the sales to different customers are viewed as a
single customer if the relevant sales were made to
various customers under common control), amounted to
approximately $479,914,000, and $507,816,000 for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 respectively.
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 21(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed as below:

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments.

o Cigarette related products: this segment sales and
manufactures cigarette packages and cigarette
packaging films; and

o Other products:
manufactures other marketing films (e.g. films
for packing straws, food, cassettes and that for
stationery tapes)

this segment sales and
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, accruals and bills payable
attributable to the manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’'s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is
set out below.

Cigarette related

EXRBERDWESR (FH)

(b) ZHW2HFK (H)

(i)

DEFRAE BERAE (B)

HZE2012F K20115E12 8318 1k
FERBTAEBEESEEEN
BESPERERERTFESBREH
R AEEARRDBHERSH
Fa0R o

Non-cigarette
related packaging

packaging materials materials Total
BERBAEMH FEERERENH fit
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
2012F 20115 212F 2011% 2012F 2011
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TR TiET TR TEr | TEn FHL
Revenue from external RENPEF KSR /
customers 572,249 519,546 127,306 155,437 699,555 674,983
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEZHHA 572,249 519,546 127,306 155,437 699,555 674,983
Reportable segment TRRIBEF
gross profit 238,195 226,199 16,327 20,438 254,522 246,637
Reportable segment profit TRRS BHANER
before taxation 167,406 185,557 2,975 7,652 170,381 193,209
Interest income from bank deposits #1777 27 8 Uiz 294 396 46 37 340 433
Interest expense FBH% 15,047 12,209 6,038 6,394 21,085 18,603
Depreciation and amortisation S RHTE R
for the year 23,976 19,192 1,940 9,635 31,916 28,827
Reportable segment assets THEIHEE 590,531 577,902 196,887 250,425 787,418 828,327
Additions to non-current ERRERERY
segment assets during the year A HEE 24,913 38,055 2,801 874 27,714 38,929
Reportable segment liabilities ~ FRFHHEE 263,070 274,214 132,330 162,767 395,400 436,981
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

ERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 EREA (&)

(b) ZHW2HFK (H)

Reconciliations of reportable segment assets and (i) AR EREERE ERER
liabilities
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
‘ FHET FHET
Assets BE \
Reportable segment assets AR D A E 787,418 828,327
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 441 726
Other receivables H b fE U SRR 2,272 264
Consolidated total assets EEERE 790,131 829,317
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AIERSR D EPAE 395,400 436,981
Deferred tax liability BB IEBE 198 1,533
Consolidated total liabilities e BEERE 395,598 438,514
Geographic information (i) HHFEEH]
No geographic information is shown as the turnover HRAEENEEMSEETER

and profit from operations of the Group are derived

from its activities in the PRC.

HEAMREERPBENER B

RN IRER o

ISRz EBARLR | =

T— 4R Q
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BAH5 R BT ot

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4 HWARFKz=
(a) Other revenue (a) HfblkA
2012 2011
20125 20114
$'000 $'000
FTHET FHT
Interest income Bz 340 \ 433
Government grants BT #85 B) 381 6,624
721 7,057
(b) Other net income (b) HAFWA
2012 2011
20125 20114
$'000 $'000
FTHET FHT
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 Uk 25 7 58 553 \ 545
Sales of scrap materials SHEEERL 11,859 10,298
Sales of raw materials SHE R 22 2,261
Others Hih 3,033 5,842
15,467 18,946
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 Bian=A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B GEA) LT EEEESENB S
|
(a) Finance costs: (a) BAFEmAS :

ARAFERBHEED
RITHEHHB

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

2012
201245
$'000

TR

21,085

2011
20114
$'000
FHT

18,603

0 SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



5

Notes to the Financial Statements

5

BRI 5E

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BianaF (&)
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIMRA:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FHET FHET
Contributions to defined contributions 535t FGRAKET I H 3 \
retirement plan 3,460 2,989
Equity-settled share-based payment  LAREZEAAE AR (D A
expenses (note 18) BRI (FisE18) 398 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 43,381 33,625
47,239 36,614
(c) Other items: () HAIEAR:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FET THT
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEREE 52 63
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B & 2,906 1,423
Cost of inventories * (note 11(b)) FERA* (FIFE11(0)) 445,033 428,346
Depreciation and amortisation B E B ETE K
of fixed assets 31,864 28,764
Net foreign exchange gain b H a5 58 (533) (545)
Operating lease charges KEHEEBR 1,254 1,562
Net loss on sale of fixed assets L& B E B EME R FEE 844 -

& Cost of inventories includes and $46,031,000 (2011:
$43,005,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or
in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

FERABSEHE TRA « TERH#
$5 59 2 A B8 AX 4546,031,000T (2011
£ : 43,005,00070) * WA ESEEIRETA
SR S (b) B 5 X HR R B L ER
RIAEEESTENA -

wrznsmanaa | =2-=r5i <
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ARSI AR

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 #HREWREERANAEHR
STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HZEWERAMBENRE
represents:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FET AT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax EIHi%i1E — FEREBH
Provision for the year FREHE 6,275 4,324
Current tax — PRC income tax ENEABiIE — FEFTEH
Provision for the year FNEAE 43,822 45,992
Deferred tax IIF 3 #5418
Origination and reversal of T ZRAMES R EE
temporary differences (3,644) 2,137
46,453 52,453

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 is
calculated at 16.5%. The payments of dividends by
the Group companies incorporated in Hong Kong
are not subject to withholding tax.

On 16 March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“New Tax
Law”) which became effective on 1 January 2008
and the PRC’s statutory Corporate Income Tax rate
is 25%.

The New Tax Law and its relevant regulations
provide for a five-year transition period from 1
January 2008 for those companies which were
entitled to preferential tax rates under the effective
tax laws and regulations. The transitional tax rates
are 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% for 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards, respectively.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

REFRESHERRBRLFSN
BRAIRRG  AEEBEARNZE
BERER AT AAEH -

HZE2011F KX2012F12A8318 1k
FE BBEMNEHOEER
16.5%5T & - AEBER B HEM
BK 32 B9 R &) FORA 89 AR B 5 7B 8
MTEFL -

MR2007F38168 £+ @2 X
ARREACFERAXREZESH
BAPBECEMBRE (IR
A1) - HR2008F1A18 £
FEEEREMBHEAE25% °

FEE R EMRBERRREE R
R AREREZERME
HAE T E2008F1A1EE A
A F A EEH - 20084 ~ 2009
2 2010F « 2011F  K20124F
NEMBERED R A18% -
20% ~ 22% ~ 24% % 25% °



6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6
STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

(iv) According to the New Tax Law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable by non-
PRC-resident corporate investors from PRC-resident
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at 10%,
unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements, for
profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the
relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax

and holds

a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC enterprise

is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.

The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is

5%.

resident which is the “beneficial owner”

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ik B 5

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mEWERANAEHR (

(a) HEWRBRAVBERE @ (F)

(iv), BIBFBEREBHEMA - BRI
200841 A1H #£ B B 1 4% 7
ERBEGTHEER - & A3
FEERCEREERKTREE
REt¥MNRBEARIONH 4B
B - B IE PR EF B
TR 2 MR % 5F AR =
R BAPECENEXESR
A X HBBE25% A LRENEE
BEAHEERAAZEEREN
MES% - AEBEZ EABENRE
A5% ©

(b) BiEMAXERBEARERFENERR

profit at applicable tax rates: HI¥ER
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation T Bz A 170,381 ‘ 193,209
Notional tax on profit before taxation, 1Z#HE =) A4E R FTA
calculated at the rates applicable to & %% = =+ & &9 Fi A1
profits in the jurisdictions concerned i ) HE B 18 40,340 47,704
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates EE KW HH 2 = (288)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~A] F171 5k F T 7S 52 & 1,144 613
PRC dividends withholding tax o R S TN 4,969 4,424
Actual tax expense EEBIERY 46,453 52,453

e i > J



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of BREEBQARIEAE161EEENESHS W
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: I
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other to retirement Share-based
Director benefits benefits Discretionary payments 2012
Name of directors EEfA fees in kind schemes bonuses  Sub-Total (note) Total
#8028 &G
REf BIER REBAMS  20mf
- E20k BNEN HE 5 KiEwA it (Wrst) CH
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 §'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T TiEn
Executive directors HEE
Guo Yumin IER - 605 2 2 649 19 668
Xia Yu EE - 187 1 10 198 19 217
Huang Bo BR - 3 - 1 374 19 393
Bau Siu Fung LN - 1,000 14 - 1,014 19 1,033

Independent non-executive BU#HEE

directors
Lo Wa Kei BER 94 - - - 9 - 94
Fong Wo A 94 - - - 94 - 94
Fan Qing bl 94 - - - 94 - 94
Total At 282 2,165 37 33 2,517 76 2,593
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other  to retirement Share-based
Director benefits benefits  Discretionary payments 2011
Name of directors EEfA fees in kind schemes bonuses  Sub-Total (note) Total
e 2E b

REth RINER RERET  201E
ESM8 ENEH TR REta ) (BizE) fif
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL AL TEL TAL

Executive directors HiTEE
Guo Yumin IR m - 12 91 475 - 475
Xia Yu gk - - - - - - -
Huang Bo R - - - 267 267 = 267
Bau Siu Fung g - 150 2 - 152 - 152
Total o 372 150 14 358 894 - 894

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2(o)(ii) and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed in note 18.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2011: two) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEME (&)
Wi

ZENRERBEADABREABETESTOM
RAHEEE - ZSBRENEETREMNE20)0 AT
HAREBHARN REBNRNZ S EK
TE - MREBEZBE - EREEEENREBES
EROESTARBBAT RO Rt e IED

ZEBYERMNNFEE (PEREBRENZZHRIK
HH) HRKE18HE

S AL

hEZmmBMALTHEIR (2011F : 28) A
B BB RAWE7THE - % T AT
R

2012 2011

20125 20114

$'000 $'000

; FTHET THT

Salaries and other emoluments 4 N Hoth R 727 \ 637
Contributions to retirement RIREAET B R

benefits schemes 120 68

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 111 299

958 1,004

Number of senior management BREEEAS 2 2

L B SR -
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BAH5 R BT ot

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 ®&SHHMA L (&)

(CONTINUED)

The above individuals are within the following band:

A EALHFHMAFATER

2012 2011

201245 20114

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A8 N

Nil to $1,000,000 21,000,0007 [ 2| 3
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 BSBREAKREBERRN

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$70,076,000 (2011: HK$81,426,000) and the weighted
average of 415,000,000 shares (2011: 415,000,000) in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 was based on the
assumptions that the 415,000,000 shares before the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange were in issue, as if such
shares had been outstanding throughout the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

There were no diluted potential ordinary shares throughout the
years and therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as
the basic earnings per share.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012

FRRERBF TR E A QA IR R FE (G A
70,076,000/ 7T (20114 : 81,426,000/ Jr)
N K 4 Z 2 3 17415,000,0000% P& 15 (2011
£ : 415,000,000/% /%5 ) B DT IHEGTE -

HE2012FE F2011F12 831 B ILFEHD 3%
TTRR 7 K DN 39 B TH AR 15 R AR AR A7 BBk 22 P
W ATA415,000,0000% B 217 B AD i 15
MNZERDREE20124 %2011412 A31
HIEFE—&EFE -

RAFE I BT BT LA
BERN B RENRFER -
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B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FIXED ASSETS 10 BEEE
Interests in
leasehold
and held
Office for own
equipment use under
Plantand  and other Motor ~ Construction operating
Buildings ~ machinery ~ fixed assets vehicles inprogress  Sub-total lease Total
RIEGERE
BRERE FEBRE
Rt BELIHN

BT HERhiEE  ETEE nE o REIR It i ait
§'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
TR TR TEn TR TiEn TATL TiEn TR

Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2011 W2011E1R18 98,642 235,237 8,284 5,788 828 348,779 45,814 394,593
Bxchange adjustments B 4,894 11,688 441 29 672 17,99 20 20262
Additions RE 194 3,579 1,966 395 32,753 38,887 - 38,887
Disposals k- = = (53) (24) (12) (89) = (89)
Transfer from construction BERETRER

in progress 95 2,497 4 - (3,003) - - -
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 103,825 253,001 11,049 6,454 31,238 405,567 48,086 453,653
Accumulated depreciation and ~ RtTERE

amortisation:
At 1 January 2011 #2011 718 (8,462) (22,933 (1,728) (1,648) - (34,11) (1,614) (36,385)
Exchange adjustments EAE (531) (1.487) (136) (109) = (2,263) (100) (2,363)
Charge for the year ERk (5,431) (18,244) (2,814) (1323 - (2781 (952)  (28.764)
Written back on disposals R ERER - - 47 2 - 69 - 69
At31December 2011 RonFnANE (14424)  (42664) | (463) B0 - T (2,666) (67443
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R2011E128318 89,401 210,337 6,418 3,396 31,238 340,790 45,420 386,210

wninmana| =-=58 <G



(B S AR - UBTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Interests in
leasehold
land held
Office for own
equipment use under
Plantand  and other Motor Construction operating
Buildings  machinery fixed assets  vehicles in progress  Sub-total ease Total
RESEHE
BAZHRE KEBRH
Rt RELHEH

B HERE®  BETEE RE HERIR gt B EE
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Cost: %
At 1 January 2012 #201251818 103,825 253,001 11,049 6,454 31,238 405,567 48,086 453,653
Exchange adjustments ERAE (13) (31) (1) (1) (0] (50) (6) (56)
Additions NE 6,770 2,012 1,956 1,138 15,838 21,114 - 21,114
Disposals e (1,690) (6,013) - - - (7,703) - (7,703)
Transfer from construction BEEIREY

in progress 40,778 3,630 - - (44,408) - - -
At 31 December 2012 120128124318 149,670 252,599 13,004 7,591 2,664 425,528 48,080 473,608
Accumulated depreciation and ~ RtTEREY

amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 201251818 (14,424) (42,664) (4,631) (3,058) - (64,777) (2,666) (67,443)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2 6 - - - 8 - 8
Charge for the year FR (7,012) (19,625) (2,800) (1,395) - (30,892) (972)  (31,864)
Written back on disposals REERED 308 5,112 - - - 5,420 - 5,420
At 31 December 2012 B2012612A318 (118)  (572071)  (1.431)  (4453) - (90241)  (3638)  (93.879)
Net book value: AR -
At 31 December 2012 120126124318 128,484 195,428 5,573 3,138 2,664 335,287 44,4402 379,729
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(a)

(b)

The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:

Medium-term leases in the PRC R EAFEEE
Representing: Bp:
Buildings BF

Interests in leasehold land held for BRELEHERFEFERN

HE L H S

own use under operating lease

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease represent land located in the PRC. As at
31 December 2012, the remaining period of the land use
rights ranged from 46 to 49 years.

Buildings, plant and machinery and interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating
lease pledged for banking facilities

As at 31 December 2012, buildings, plant and machinery
and interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease with net book value of $289,802,000
(2011: $275,182,000) are pledged as security against
bank loans of certain subsidiaries (see note 16).

(a)

(b)

(BrS B8N - ABTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MERDFEINOT :

2012 2011

20124 20114

$'000 $'000

FE&xT FHT

172,926 134,821

128,484 89,401

44,442 45,420

172,926 134,821

RELEHEREFERANAE T hr#E
SIERI A B A £ o FR2012412 A31
B T AENG TEHRN T46£49
FERE o

RBRTHEENET BEREBRRE
BEREAERFEANAE L BNES

M20124F12A318 B @ % E B
289,802,0007T (20114 : 275,182,000
To) BETF - BRE R RIBERAEH
EREERAMNEE LRI
ERETHBRARMRITEROERD
(RKIFE16) o

IERZEREBERAR | —F——FFH



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 INVENTORIES 11 FE
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statements of (a) HZEMBERABERANEFERE:
financial position comprise:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
\ FHET FAT
Raw materials BRI 61,975 67,104
Work in progress EER 14,417 13,224
Finished goods UK TR 29,187 39,926
105,579 120,254
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABINEESEINWOT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
Carrying amount of inventories sold D E&HFEHNREE 445,176 428,426
Reversal of write down of inventories  #[El1E S #UR (143) (80)
445,033 428,346
12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 12 EZRWRIERHEMERIE
Group Company
rEE AATE]
2012 2011 2012
20124 20114 20124
$'000 $'000 $'000
FET FH&T FHET
Trade and bills receivable B Sl 0E &k E N Z R W 213,422 -
Deposits, prepayments and e BRERR
other receivables H e U R IE
— related parties — B = 2,467 -
— third parties —%=5 33,890 12,817 267
Amount due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A &) ZIE - - 121,690
Amount due from the JiE Ui A% A% 3R SR I8
Controlling Shareholder
— Mr Guo Yumin —MBEREAE - 29,012 =
223,157 257,718 121,957

All of the other trade and other receivables (including amounts
due from subsidiaries), are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 12

(a)

Ageing analysis:

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included
in trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date

and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZRUCRER E M EWRE ()

SRR D AT

RBERR BHEHARBRERE
(T35 AN B 5 R WOk IR I L Atb & kIR
n) ERNBEZERHRMNGRERERD
BRI -

Group

rEE
2012 2012 2011 2011
20124 20124 20114F 20114
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivable receivable receivable receivable

B3 =&

PE W FhIE e FEWRRIE FEW R 1%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THERT THET FET FAET
Less than 30 days DHR30H 96,255 1,778 129,931 4,179
31 - 90 days 31 -90H 37,865 8,632 62,099 4,073
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 36,423 1,222 4,902 3,486
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H 3,532 - 3,044 295
Over 365 days iBim365H 3,560 - 1,413 -
177,635 11,632 201,389 12,033

Trade and bills receivable are due within 30 to 180 days
from the invoice date. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 21(a).

EoRRFBERERZEEEZANRE
302180HANEIH - BEEAEEFEE K
REE— P HBHRNE21(@) °

iSSP S 2 E AR 01



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI R

(R=HIEHAN

AT R EAL)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

(c)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 12 EZEWREAREMEWRE (&)
Trade and bills receivable that are not impaired: (b) HRBENEZERRERERE
Group
AEME
2012 2011
20125 20114
$'000 $'000
FET FAET
Current BNER 141,975 193,356
Less than 1 month past due B DR E R 8,407 7,136
1 to 3 months past due BER1E3{E A 31,683 4,864
More than 3 months past due w AR A3 E A 7,202 8,066
Amountpastdue @#e® 47292 20,066
189,267 213,422
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired SR 380 AR N SRR (B BY JE U R TR B 3T HA P 4
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was HEREHNZERPER -
no recent history default.
The trade and bills receivable as of each period end were B 5 FEWEIA R FE W R IB PN & AR I 4
not impaired. Receivables that were past due but not AWE B 480 BB SRR (B B9 B U SR I8 T B
impaired relate to the trade balance with a number of ETHAEEERRITR 5D EE L
independent customers that have a good track record BEFEFNESEREHE -  BRIBRELS
with the Group. Based on past experience, management EEEBERRZSHMABAFELRER
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary - RAEEERTRENEHEERD
in respect of these balances as there has not been a R AR 2 EULE o
significant change in credit quality and the balance are
still considered fully recoverable.
Trade and other receivables pledged for banking (0 BBRITAMEFEEANEZBURERH
facilities: fth FE U R
As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables with net book M2012F12A318 R @ F B A

value of $57,673,000 (2011: nil) are pledged as security
against bank loans of certain subsidiaries (see note 16).
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(BrS B8N - ABTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BRERRLZEEBEHERE:

Group Company

rEE /N

2012 2011 2012

20125 20114 20124

$'000 $'000 $'000

FERT FAT FET

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEER 79,180 63,013 119
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, cash at bank and 20114 20126128318 © F R
in hand placed with banks in the PRC amounted to FEIRIRTT R FIEIRE 5 557,841,000
$57,841,000 and $74,470,000 respectively. Remittance JL &% 74,470,0007T © P EE L& &8

of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange R BB AT A A0 B9 SN B Il AR BR o

restriction imposed by the PRC government.

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) FANRAEHELEFMBRESNEIR
generated from operations
Note 2012 2011
{iEss 20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FHERT FHT
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation 1 A% A 170,381 193,209
Adjustments for: KR
Amortisation of intangible assets I EEHE 5(c) 52 63
Depreciation and amortisation B E & AT & R
of fixed assets 5(c) 31,864 28,764
Finance costs EUR L I %N 5(a) 21,085 18,603
Interest income B M= 4(a) (340) (433)
Loss on sales of fixed assets HEBTEENEIE 5(c) 844 -
Foreign exchange gain G (1,129) (5,309)
Operating profit before changes %E&E LS B ELEF
in working capital 222,757 234,897
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(38m) 14,660 (3,899)
Decrease/(increase) in trade B S RWGRIE R EAL
and other receivables M RIBR A (3 0) 4,110 (59,443)
Decrease in trade and B S ENRIBEREM
other payables ANENEVHN (40,237) (3,556)
Cash generated from operations K& fEEE 201,290 167,999

IERZEREBERAR | —F——FFH



Notes to the Financial Statements

BAH5 R BT ot

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investment, at cost

14 RHBATINEKRE

FELETEIRE (JARKAET)

Company

YN

2012
201245
$'000

FExT

84,955

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

Name of company
ARER

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and Export
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("LXFY")
FERFELD ORY) BRAA
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science
Technology Co., Ltd. ("JSSC")
e RERRARAA
(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Jiangsu Shuntai Packaging & Printing
Science Technology Co., Ltd. ("JSST")
THERARHRMEERAR
(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology
Co., Ltd. ("QD Ener")
(EEXRBENERRAT)
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Century Leader Asia Limited ("CLAL")
BRENERAR

Sheen China Group Holdings Inc. ("SCGHI")
(EEEERRERAR)

Sheen China Group Holdings Limited
("SCGHL") (B EBIERERAR)

Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited ("HKSC")
(EZ (%) BRAR)

Date and

place of

incorporation/

establishment

HEL/

RIBBRBY

BERFELD 10 September 2007/
(RY) BRAR (TLFY)) The PRC
(Fi3E1) R (Bisk2) 2007598108/
HE

TEERE 6 March 2002/
BEERAA (155C)) The PRC
(F3E1) R (B33) 200243768 /
el

THEZBEDR 20 December 2008/
MEBBAR ([15ST)) The PRC
(&) R (B3E3) 20085128208/
e

ERERRENE 27 June 2007/
ERAF (1QD Ener]) The PRC
(R31) R (R3t2) 2007565278/
e

BEENERAR 2 April 2007/
(fceacl) Hong Kong
200754528/

B

JEEEBRRERAA 27 November 2008/
([SCGHI) British Virgin Islands
("BVI")

20085114278/

RBRLHS

([XBEZHS))

[EEEEERER AR 5 September 2008/
([SCGHL]) Hong Kong
200859758/

B

B (%) ARAA 20 August 1997/
(THKSC ) Hong Kong
199748A208 /

&k
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Place of
operation

EESiE ]

The PRC
48

The PRC
48

The PRC
hE

The PRC
HE

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

THEHELE

IR A BB o

Issued
and paid
up capital
BEAR
BEEAR

HKD
23,180,000
A

UsD
2,176,400
S

UsD
5,500,000
X7

UsD
12,000,000
S

HKD
10,000
BT

UsD
10
ES

HKD
1
BT

HKD
12,600,000
A

Proportion of ownership interest

BiEEL 4 3=
Group's Held Held
effective by the bya
interest ~ Company  subsidiary
AREN : :d
BREE  A0EKE MELEKE
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
(Note 4)
(Kizta)
51% - 51%
100% - 100%
(Note 5)
(Bzts)
100% = 100%
100% 100% =
100% = 100%
100% = 100%

FEANEEZEE BEXRAE

MM B ARFE - REEEAIN - A ZK

Principal
activities

IERH

Trading of
ciqarette
films

BEIRES

Printing of
Cigarette
films

EEARDA

Printing of
Cigarette
packages

ERaXDR

Manufacturing
of cigarette
and BOPP films
E/ERBOPP
ARNEE

Investment
holding
RERRK

Investment
holding
RERR

Trading of
cigarette
films

BEEERS

Trading of
cigarette
films

BEERES
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 RHEBARNKRE (&)

Note 1: The English translation of the names is for reference only. BtET - RXAHEBLBERSE - ZEE
The official names of these entities are in Chinese. BrE F%%ﬁuqﬂiﬁé—g
Note 2: These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the MizE2 - ZEBRRTEDINERE -
PRC.
Note 3: These entities are equity joint ventures in the PRC. PHEES ZEBERRTHSERE -
Note 4: For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned MisEa - HZE201MF12A31BLEE  A5H
68.15% equity interest of JSSC. On 28 August 2012, the  BISSCHIES. 15% A% # ° 7201248
Group purchased the remaining 31.85% equity interest of H288 @ AEEHE=H WHEISSCH
JSSC from a third party. Since then, JSSC became a wholly- T31.85% MR #E + B L LATE - JSSCAX
owned subsidiary of the Group. AREENZENBAR
Note 5: For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group owned FIFES HZE2011F12A31BLEE  A%H
70% equity interest of QD Ener. On 13 March 2012, the HEBQD Enerf70%A%HE - A201243
Group purchased the remaining 30% equity interest of A138  "EBEHE=7FWEQD Ener
QD Ener from a third party. Since then, QD Ener became a FRT30% M - BItbLA{E - QD Ener
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. REASEEHNZENBAR -
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 15 BEZENREREBENKE
Group Company
AEE AR
2012 2011 2012
20124 20114 20125
$'000 $'000 $'000
\ FHET TET | FHBT
Trade and bills payable H SN FIERERNRE 40,288 52,164 | -
Other payables and accruals HihfENF IE&VH‘I‘%FH 29,633 48,353 92
Amount due to the Controlling JE ST AR A BR R
Shareholder
— Mr Guo Yumin —HBERSELE 518 12,586 -
70,439 113,103 92
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FIEE SENFRIERHEMEMNFIBERRAR—F
within one year or are repayable on demand. NEEE IR T RKKEFE -

L s R 105
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BAH5 R BT ot

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade

15 BEZENFEREMENTKE ()
RBERR - ERFEEARBNRE (TI5TA

B RNFEREMENTERN) ENERR

and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: HARRREC DT AT -
Group
rEE
2012 2011
20126 20114
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payable payable payable payable
g5 =]
FE{TRRIE EBAEE FETSRIA ANES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHET THET FET FET
Due within 1 month 18 B R E Bf ko g Z 5k
or on demand 22,170 4,933 44,904 -
Due after 1 month but 11E A 1% 1831E A W H#
within 3 months 7,026 4,933 273 -
Due after 3 months but 31E A & 1861E A N E| =
within 6 months 670 - 6,822 -
Due more than 6 months 61E A 1% 2 H 556 = 165 =
30,422 9,866 52,164 -
16 BANK LOANS 16 RITEX
At 31 December 2011 and 2012, the bank loans were R2011F R2012F 128318 « IRITEFER
repayable as follows: BT -
2012 2011
20125 20114
$'000 $'000
FTHET FAT
Within 1 year or on demand 1F R EEK 277,504 154,188
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 %B2FR 24,667 -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBESFR - 146,787
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 24,667 146,787
302,171 300,975
Representing: Bp -
Secured BHEA 277,504 276,304
Unsecured e 45 24,667 24,671
302,171 300,975

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2011 and 2012, the banking facilities of the
Group totalling $300,975,000 and $351,505,000 respectively
were utilised to the extent of $300,975,000 and $302,171,000
respectively. Certain bank loans were secured by assets of the
Group as set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SR MY 5

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 RITEX (&)

#20114F K2012F12A318 © N&E B 4 &t
7 7l /300,975,0007% 7T %351,505,0007% 7T
RERTTREE B 9 5 8) F300,975,0007% 7T &
302,171,000/ 7T - AASKEMNEEERNE
FRITERHEIWT ¢

2012 2011

20124 20114

$'000 $'000

FET FHET

Fixed assets EE&E 289,802 275,182
Trade receivable B 5 W8 57,673 =
347,475 275,182

Certain banking facilities of the Group were guaranteed by the
related companies as disclosed in note 23(d).

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 21(b). As at 31 December 2012
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached (2011: nil).

AEBME TRITREBBERR RO E
23(d)FTRER) 1R -

RNEBMOMBRITHEATEKNBHEAEEE
TEEEBLERNRFE  NARATHSAEEE
KEEELZBMRE - WASBERZ® - T
RO REREZEREER ASETHERE
BETZELE BEAEREERHES
[RB& Y3 — R IB R AT FE21(b) © 7420124
12A318  AEEREERESRIAME
BRAMRE (20114 : ) ©

I e IR 107
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17

18

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the
relevant local authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required
to make contributions to the Scheme at the rate of 11% -
20% of the eligible employees’ salaries for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to June 2012).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“share option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide
grantees with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interest
in the Company. The purpose of the share option scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time), directors and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of the
business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EERKEFEF

REMFCRKEE
BIEFENABSEERIETE PREWNER
A2 E A %A SN R ERFERIK
BHRETE ([FFE]) - Bt REZE2011FE R
2012F 1231 LFE - HIB R RZAMETE
EHAEREBREEFE11%-20%HIHEFK -

AEBENRBEESRFEABSAENEHIHZ
EREBRMAIEORBTHREELHERFEA
Bertdl ([REeE]) - aBestals—
BHBYSTAATENREEIERAE - R
BoaEests B REEESBAREIE
HHENE SR AS%HER - A A
78 U A25,0007T (201246 A #i120,0007T) A
EBR o MFEIMNEREANESES

B B ERSN  ARE Y BEEMEZFTEE
R R ABNEANREE °

DEREEURMDAERNRS
RIEME—RER2012F6 A22BBBH LA
REBR - BALHEEAEBRERTS (B
B B EREM  AERARERS
ERARAINBEBED - BRESEER
SIMBBRENATAALS AXEBES (2
) ESREMREEINMEE A REREARE
EEEHRKT ©

SRBRER T 55 ANEHRBAR T —RE
B ARG R B -



18 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

18

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DRESEHEUROR/ERNRS (F)

(a) RENERREHDT :

Options granted to

BFUTALTHERE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total
& BH SEAH I8 A B 3= Bt
22 June 2012 14 July 2013 13 July 2018 200,000 800,000 1,000,000
201246 H22H 2013%7H14H 2018%7H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2014 13 July 2018 300,000 1,200,000 1,500,000
201296 H22H 201457141 20185 7H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2015 13 July 2018 400,000 1,600,000 2,000,000
201256 H22H 201557 H14H 2018%7H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2016 13 July 2018 500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000
201296 H22H 201657 H14H 201857 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2017 13 July 2018 600,000 2,400,000 3,000,000
201296 H22H 201797148 2018%F7H13H

2,000,000 8,000,000 10,000,000

iSSP S 2 e 0o 1



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R

(B R EFRHAIN - LUBTTAERL)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 18 LIEGAEUKROGH/ERNIS (HF)
(CONTINUED)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) BREMNEERMEFHTEENT :
of share options are as follows:
Weighted 2012
average 20125
exercise price No. of options

piik; B BRERHE

TEE ‘000
T4
Granted during the year FRERT HK$0.6029/% 7T 10,000
Forfeited during the year FRERIK = -
Outstanding at the end of the year FRMEARITE 10,000
There was no share option exercised during the year as AR AR R - BHEE RN F
the vesting period was not lapsed. RATIE o
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an 72012412 A31 B M RITEERERNTT
exercise price of HK$0.6029 and a weighted average 18 /0.6029/8 7T » MEFHHRTEL
remaining contractual life of 4.5 years. HARR /4.5 ©
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions: () BREMNATFTERRER:

The fair value of services received in return for the share RBREREESRENATEDZR
options is measured by reference to the fair value of ERHERENQFEEE - BRESN
share options granted. The estimated fair value of share HEAAFEDER B BERAG
options is measured based on binomial lattice model: =

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 18 LUERZEURGHEERNORS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions: () BRENQIFERRR @ (H)
(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions BERIE R 2N T (B ]S B2R
2012
2012%
Fair value per share at measurement date REtE BB ERRN A TFE HK$0.77863 7T
Share price A%(B HK$1.3678 7T
Exercise price per option BiBRENITEE HK$0.60297% 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average  TEHIEHE (LA —ER BfEE A
volatility used in the binomial lattice model) IR IERR) 46.8592%
Option life BB A HAMR 5 years
54
Expected dividends TEHIIR S 2.4179%
Risk-free interest rate A [ i 1) 2K 0.5809%
The expected volatility is based on past few years TEHURIE DEREU LM AT RBER
historical price volatility of similar listed companies. FHRELEBKE HHREDERE
Expected dividends are based on management’s best BEMNREMHET  ERBIED2RE
estimation. The risk-free rate is referenced to the yields VISR P 85 17 B BB AR T S A PR B B R
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills/Notes issued by the FHEBIEESES ZHEOMS
Hong Kong Government with the corresponding time to o
maturity of the option.
Except for the conditions mentioned above, there were Br Bt g eroh - 1A B S AR R 51 AR R
no other market conditions and service conditions B A T SR AR A 1
associated with the share option scheme.
19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19 SGREMBMRRRANRAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statements of (a) HREFBMREKRAMEEABIEE
financial position represents:
2012 2011
20124 20114F
$'000 $'000
FEx FAET
As of 1 January M1A1E / 18,938 13,924
Provision for Hong Kong Profits HEEBBNEHEE
Tax for the year 6,275 4,324
Provision for PRC income tax for the year gt B FT1S %5 43,822 45,992
Income taxes paid B ATSH (49,349) (46,077)
Exchange difference ME 5, = RR (10) 775
As of 31 December MW12A31H 19,676 18,938

wxepsmernd =251 <P
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BAH5 R BT ot

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19 HLEMBRRARAWAMEH (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EHRRELEHELEERER:

()  The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (i) MRALEEMBERRRAERDIE
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial ERMIBEE (BF) MEKIH
position and the movements during the years are as REREEHHOT
follows:

PRC
Pre Provision dividend Fair vale
Unrealised  Fixed assets  operating Government Accrued for withholding  adjustment
profit depreciation  expenses grant  expenses  inventories tax  of assets Total
BE HE gE
RERER  EENE  SEAER RGER EREX BEEF  RSENE  ATEEE At
§'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
T TEL TEL T T TEL TR TR TExn
At 1 January 2011 R011E1A18 365 55 1,451 - 539 57 (3,659) (349) (1,541)
Exchange adjustments EH AR - 3 60 - 14 3 - - 80
Charged/{credited) RERERG/
to profit or loss (tA) 484 - (558) - (553) 200 *(1,564) 74 (2,137)
At 31 December 2011 R20115128318 849 58 953 - - 40 (5,223) (275) (3,598)
At 1 January 2012 R201251518 ’ 849 58 953 - - 40 (5.223) (275) (3,598) \
Exchange adjustments EHA% - - (1) - - - - - (1)
Charged(credited) RERERHR/
to profit or loss (A 709 - (515) 259 - (35) *3,152 74 3,644
At 31 December 2012 R20126128318 1,558 58 437 259 - 5 (2,071) (201) 45
* These amounts include the provision of withholding * ZE S BB EN2011K%2012
tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to F JE 5t BB B 2 R B9 ) TR
$4,424,000 and $4,969,000 for the year 2011 and 5 Bl E 4,424,000 &
2012 respectively, and the reversal of deferred tax 4,969,000 VM - A KR EL
liabilities on withholding tax in respect of dividends E2011% R2012%F12A318 1E
paid amounting to $2,860,000 and $8,121,000 FEREMBR BB S BIE
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and {1 #92,860,0007T %28,121,0007T
2012, respectively. FEEETR B B E#E -

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012



19 INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19 ZEMBRRARANFAEHR (F)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRBEEHREEREE: (F)
(continued)
(i)  Reconciliation to the statements of financial (i)  BABARRRAEER
position:
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in  REIIEAK R RIERH
the statement of financial position RERTEE EFE 2,317 1,900
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised — REFFEAR R RIERH
in the statement of financial position  EIEFIEE & F5E (2,272) (5,498)
45 (3,598)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

20 EX - FERERE
(a) REBFERBLWBE
AEEGSEENSEARTD TR
IR RN RRN AR TX -
m R 4 7] % 4 S A 25 O {8 B 48K 26
SEHBEEIBEHINMOT

Share Share Capital Retained
Note  capital premium reserve profits Total
ik BA BROBE BEXHEHE REEF At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TExT TExT TExRT THExR TEx
Balance at 24 February 2012 M201262 244 - - = = =
(date of incorporation) maE R (FEff
B B ER)
Issuance of shares upon A TEM A S B 21T = - - _ _
incorporation & fn
Loss and total comprehensive FABERER = = - (2,862) (2,862)
income for the year W BER
Arising from Reorganisation SHEEES (c)(iii) 3,000 - 81,955 - 84,955
Issuance of ordinary shares. RERARBER 1,150 123,696 - - 124,846
upon initial public offering, BITEBR
net off issuing costs (HIBRBATRCA)  (O)(iv)
Balance at 31 December 2012 2012412 A318 4,150 123,696 81,955  (2,862) 206,939

YRR

wrersmsrnd| =255 g
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(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 20 (X - RERRKRE (&)

(b) Dividends (b) BE
Dividends payable were proposed to equity shareholders BHEEN AR ERRENEEE(L
of the Company attributable to the year: A% B
2012
20124
$'000
FTHET
Final dividend proposed at the WMEREZRRARE
end of the reporting period of B ERAR7 0178 T
HK$0.1 per ordinary share 41,500

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Dividends for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 represented dividends declared by SCGHI, QD Ener

AR & B RIR IR 0 R HA AR B I B R ¥
FHARERLSAME -

é%§2012&2011¢12ﬂ31 BLEFER
BHEMSCGHI » QD EnerX&ISSTEIR Z

and JSST. Hn g
(c) Share capital () B’=X
Authorised and issued share capital JETERE BT
2012
20124
Number
Note of shares Amount
B 5E RO A -}
('000) $'000
(FR&) FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &RXEE0.01/8 T L @BA% 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRBZNEBER :
and fully paid:
At 1 January R1A1H = =
Issuance of shares upon R S R B 1T AR (D
incorporation (i) = -
Issuance of shares upon REBEAREITIRGD
reorganisation (i) 300,000 3,000
Issuance of shares upon initial RERAFAEERETRG
public offering (iv) 115,000 1,150
At 31 December MW12A31H 415,000 4,150

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company'’s residual assets.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Company was incorporated on 24 February 2012 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date,
the Company issued 1 share at par value of HK$0.01 each.

(i) On 21 June 2012, the Group completed the
Reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s structure in
preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As a result of
the Reorganisation, the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 21 June 2012.

(iii)  Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 21 June 2012, the
authorized share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 1,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. In
addition 299,999,999 shares, all credited as fully paid
at par, were allotted and issued to shareholder of the
Company.

(iv)  On 13 July 2012, the shares of the Company was listed on
the Stock Exchange following the completion of its initial
public offering 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$1.20 per share under
the initial public offering. On 3 August 2012, the Over-
allotment Option has been exercised in full to cover over-
allocations in the Placing. Under the Over-allotment
Option, an aggregate of 15,000,000 ordinary shares have
been allotted and issued by the Company at HK$1.20
per share. Proceeds of HK$1,150,000 representing the
par value of these ordinary shares, were credited to the
Company’s share capital and the excess of the proceeds
over the nominal value of the total number of ordinary
shares issued after offsetting share issuance costs of
HK$123,696,000, were credited to the share premium
account of the Company.

(v) Capital in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 January and 31 December 2011 represented the
aggregate amount of capital of the companies then
comprising the Group, after elimination of investments in
subsidiaries.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SR MY 5

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 EX - FERKRE (8)

(c)

B ()
Wi

(i) A R A B20129F2H248 = it AL
3o R E B AR /380,000 Tt (9 A
38,000,000/% & f% H {£0.01/% 7T 8) A%
7)) BA  AATRFETIRERAEE
0.01BTTHIRMG ©

(i)  M2012F6A21H - AEHAR AR
MEBZAERET - NREEBTKE
HARBEAREEREE -  E41% - K
AR R2012F6 21BN BAEBH
ERAT ©

(i) MRIFEBAR R R 2R K N2012F6A
QIRABNEAREZR BHIER
1,962,000,000/% & A% H {H0.017% 7T
B A& - AN A B TE AR A8 380,000
75 7T 3 A1 220,000,000 T I 4h
299,999,9990% & &F IR E B A\ AR 7 {E4
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(iv) 2012978138 RARIRZEKHE
BAAAEBEEREAROGEBIAM L
M ° 100,000,000/% & R E {E0.015 T
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(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

- the equity shareholders of the Company
acquired the non-controlling interests of
QD Ener at RMB39,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$48,507,000) pursuant to a share transfer
agreement dated 13 March 2012;

- LXFY acquired the non-controlling interests
of JSSC at HK$3,113,000 pursuant to a share
transfer agreement dated on 28 August 2012;

- the contribution made by the Controlling
Shareholder before the Reorganisation by
waiving the right to receive an amount
payable by SCGHI; and

- the difference between the nominal value
of shares of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
Reorganisation of the Group;
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Statutory reserve

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year/period losses) to the statutory
reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of each relevant PRC subsidiary.
The transfer to the statutory reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be
utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the subsidiary.

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve presents the fair
value of the share options granted to employees of
the Group in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted by share-based payment in note 2(o)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial information of operations with
functional currency other than Hong Kong dollars.
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(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure that
there was adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group's
net debt over its shareholder’s equity as at 31 December
2011 and 2012 was 99% and 67 % respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject
to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
and prior years.

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arise in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade and bills receivable
are due within 30 to 180 days from the date of invoice.
Debtors with balances that are more than 1 year from
the date of invoice are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 41.6% (2011: 54.2%)
of the total trade debtors were due from the Group’s
largest customer and 75.4% (2011: 80.4%) of the total
trade debtors were due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statements of financial position.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 12.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the management and directors when
the borrowing exceeds certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based

on rates current at the end of the respective reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required

to pay:

21 BIREAREERAFEE (&)

(b)

RBESRRE (&)
TRERASESRABENEE RN
TANIMBER  ZFHBEHEREL
AUPRRERE (BREERSOMEL
(HEB58) SREMRBEANOMNETE
BRI BT 3R RN SR B 2 SR A &
FHEH:

As at 31 December 2012
7A2012612H31H

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

ERABEERETE
More than
Within More than 2 years
1 year 1 year but less
Carrying or on but within than
amount Total demand 2 years 5 years
1FR BB1F  HiB2F
SRTEE AFt HEER B2FR  B5FA
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THERT FHE T TR THERT FET

Trade and other payables B o RENRIE R
Eth & < 518 55,310 55,310 55,310 - -
Bank loans RITER 302,171 315,118 289,582 25,536 -
357,481 370,428 344,892 25,536 -
As at 31 December 2011
20114512 A31H
Contractual undiscounted cash flow

AHRRERBERE
More than
Within ~ More than 2 years
1 year 1 year but less
Carrying oron  but within than
amount Total demand 2 years 5 years
1R HiB1E  HBiE2F
RmEE a5 SEEX B2FA  B5FR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FAT FET FET FAET FHET

Trade and other payables B S EMNFRIE KR

H & A< FR0R 101,891 101,891 101,891 = =
Bank loans RITER 300,975 342,873 174,802 10,642 157,429
402,866 444,764 276,693 10,642 157,429
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans and cash at bank issued at variable rates
that expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. The Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities

"

less interest-bearing investments. The Group’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group's interest-generating financial assets

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(o FRER
AEBNFNXEREERRITERRE
BRITHASESE  AEKBSAEER
AERXBEREN KRR - ANEE I EE
RERMITET R HMERR - AEH
FE NFEE] Kt BB ER B
B AREREEEERNNXESH
PR X()

) FEMEES
TRELARENSSBAE
RitEBAEREHAMFE

and interest-bearing financial liabilities at the Ha
balance sheet date:
2012 2011
2012 20114
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRA= BIRFIE
% $'000 % $'000
% FHET % FHT
Net fixed rate borrowings: BIRE
Bank loans RITER 6.72 (37,001)  6.03 - 6.63 (74,011)
Other payables H th S 2B 5.60 (1,233) - -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (8234) (74011
Net variable rate borrowings: EZEE :
Bank loans BITER 6.23 - 7.22 (265,170) 5.49 - 7.87 (226,964)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 5 : & RIRE %A
BH 0.01 - 0.36 79,180 0.01-0.50 63,013
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (185990 (163,951)
Total net borrowings FET A (224,224) (237,962)

winEaRaT| =-=58 P
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(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a
general decrease/increase of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Group's profit after tax

and retained profits by approximately $1,395,000
(2011: $1,230,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
annualised impact on the Group’s interest expense
that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
respective reporting period and had been applied
to floating rate instruments which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at that date.
The analysis does not take into account exposure
to fair value interest rate risk arising from fixed rate
instruments as the Group does not hold any fixed
rate instruments which are measured at fair value.
This analysis has been performed on the same basis
for 2011.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases made by the PRC subsidiaries which
give rise to receivables, payables, cash balances and
bank loans that are denominated in United States dollars
("USD"). Presently, the Group has no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rate at the end of the reporting period. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial information
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency are excluded.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 21 HiBEREERAFE (&)
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EE@RME (&)
Exposure to USD
EnRK
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BT REMN)
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FTHERT FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEFHBHIEE / 859 -
Net exposure arising from recognised ERREERBBMEER
assets and liabilities Rk 859 -
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TR KBTI 8 B R AR B % T
in the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits that EfmAEBERRERREAZERNRBRD
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group BE R pA 3% B H 3R A B 2 AE A BIVRSE  &h
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting (fRERE MR S BARFFTE) -
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.
2012 2011
20125 20114F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
HHREA BB
ExtHA - REZEN EXLAH S REBEH
(T EK) o2 (k) k%
% $'000 % $'000
% FHET % FAT
usb ETT 5 32 5 -
usD eV (5) (32) (5) -

wrmREmaRAT| =255 <GP
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ARSI AR

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into HKD
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial information of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for the 2011.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments as at 31 December 2011 and 2012.

(f) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments.

Interest-bearing loans

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.
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(BrS B8N - ABTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December (a) R22012F12A3MBRBITIRARTHKE
2012 not provided for in the Financial Information RREHBENEREEZNOT :
were as follows:

2012 2011

20125 201148

$'000 $'000

FEx FAT

Contracted for =EIE:S) 772 3,676

Authorised but not contracted for BEEEERETD = 1,974

772 5,650

(b)

At 31 December 2011 and 2012, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

(b) 20115 K2012%12H318 ' B F
MHHEECEHENRRBEERESRA

operating leases are payable as follows: BIRUT X
2012 2011
2012%F 20114F
$'000 $'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year 1F AN 911 1,229
After 1 year and within 5 years 1F1&81B5F N 228 413
1,139 1,642

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
and plant held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to two years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEER/ETRELLHERBENDE
RBERABEA - —RME - HEWD
FHRB—EMF  AIEREEEEMRA
fERg REEES - HEBSEBEAR

i
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23

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23 EREBAIRS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, transactions
with the following parties are considered to be related party

transactions:

Name of related party
B £
Mr Guo Yumin

BERKE

Xuzhou Long Chuan Co., Ltd.
(FINBENIEBE AR A (Note)
RMBENHBERAR (M)

Xuzhou Dinuo Printing Co., Ltd.
(MR AR 2 ) (Note)
RMFERENRIBR AR (3E)

Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd.
(EERERERFRARF)
EERERKARAHA

Qingdao Xurui Investment Guarantee
Co., Ltd. (Note)
(EEERREERERAR)

SEBEHIRERZRREBER AR ()

Qingdao Xurui Industry and Trade
Co., Ltd. (Note)
(FERRIEAFRAF])

SEBERIEBRAR (M)

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.

REE2012F K2011F12A831BIEFER -
BT FTETNRI I ERBEB TR S

Relationship with the Group

REAKENER

Director and the Controlling Shareholder of the Group
REEEFFRERBR

Owned by Mr Guo Yumin, the director and the Controlling
Shareholder until 13 June 2011
20116 A13ERHESRIERRRBERSCEMES

Mr Guo Yumin, the director and the Controlling Shareholder the
director of the Group, is the legal representative

REBEERERBRBEREEREARRK

Owned as to 30% by Mr Guo Yumin, the director and the
Controlling Shareholder until 23 March 2011
20113 A23BATHASBEERITRRRP ERTEEE30%

Owned by Qingdao Beizhou Group Co., Ltd (E &t MEEAF
R/ |]), the Shareholder of Qingdao Ener holding 30% of the
registered capital of Qingdao Ener until 13 March 2012
HESIEMNEEER AR (201263813 A1 A EQingdao Ener
30% & ANHQingdao EnerfE 3 ) FilEA

Owned by Qingdao Beizhou Group Co., Ltd. (E&tMNEEA
fR2|]), the Shareholder of Qingdao Ener holding 30% of the
registered capital of Qingdao Ener until 13 March 2012
mESLMEBEABRAAE (201293138 81 A EQingdao Ener
30%sE & AN K Qingdao Enerf& 8 ) FiiEA

M EXANREABERSE - 2SERY
BHAEUR AR -
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23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 EXBBMAEIXZ (&)

FTEEBEASHH

AEBTREEASHMH (BERME

Group, including amounts paid to the directors as TRHRBES N TEERAWESIREX
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid NT¥ETHERFHEEMFIE) S50
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: T
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
FTHET FHET
Short-term employee benefits EHEE R 4,824 2,189
Post-employment benefits BERR 12 1B F 367 169
5,191 2,358
Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” (see note e mERN B IAA] HE (R
5(b)). 5(b)) °
Transactions with related parties (b) EERAEES MRS
2012 2011
201245 20114
$'000 $'000
‘ FTHET FHET
Sales of goods to: MATARIHEE R )
- Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd. —EEREBEBRAT - 7,576
- Xuzhou Long Chuan Co., Ltd. —HMENEERRAT = 1,064
- 8,640
Other revenue and net income (Note 1):  Efilg A B zs (FisE1) -
- Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd. —EEREREARAF - 369
Purchase of goods from: MATARBEEER :
- Qingdao Justo Packaging Co., Ltd. —EEREREARAT = 1,337
Commission fee paid to (Note 2): AT AR MAE (BsE2) :
- Xuzhou Long Chuan Co., Ltd. —HBMENHEBR LA = 6,335
— Xuzhou Dinuo Printing Co., Ltd. — BNEHERIAR AT - 244
- 6,579
Note 1: the amount represents net gain arising from sales of MisE1 0 BHESEIENERMEBESENE
raw materials. s o
Note 2: the amount represents the commission fee paid for ffiz¥2 : BESHEERTHEODARERSR

arranging import of goods of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR M 5

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23

(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Transactions with related parties (continued) (b)

The directors consider that all related party transactions
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 were
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business.

Balances with related parties (c)

At 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

EXBBRLXS (&)

BEEBINRS (&)

BEERE BE20129 %20114128
BB IEFENME@E TR E—R%
BEBEIENAER —BERBAEERKB
TEAETT o

SLRANE 5 HO A5 R

20114 M20125F12A318 » A &
BEA AT B R 5 M gk

2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
i FET FAT
Amount due from the related company  JEULREE X T FIAE k
- Qingdao Xurui Investment — EBBHRREAEZRER AT
Guarantee Co., Ltd. - 2,467
Amount due from the Controlling JiE U3 AR A% R SR IR
Shareholder
— Mr Guo Yumin —-BEREE = 29,012
Amount due to the Controlling JETIERR AR B N & B3 TE
Shareholder and director
— Mr Guo Yumin —HFEREE 518 12,586

The balance with the related companies and the
Controlling Shareholder are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

MERRRERRRNESH SRR
RENMEERKEE -

Guarantees provided to the Group in respect of (d) RBTHREQAEERHEOER
banking facilities
2012 2011
20124 20114
$'000 $'000
i FET FHT
Qingdao Xurui Investment EE R EREEERAT ‘
Guarantee Co., Ltd. - 12,335
Qingdao Xurui Industry and Trade SEBBMIZER AT
Co., Ltd. - 18,503
- 30,838
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24 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of the
assets in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. In addition, these estimates
could change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management measures these
estimates at each reporting date.

24

Notes to the Financial Statements
b E N

(BrS B8N - ABTTRER)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B R AN
AREFERHE Gt RAE - WRBEERR
HiER (BENARBERLTHBREMHMIE
M A IETEE) (EH et RHIE -

ERBAEENGIHREN  SRBELUT
8

(a) #E
ME - BE KRB R fhE R R (E
B REFAERFEHANERE
& AEEESFRNEEN MR E
PR B A e PME R 3R 5 B8 T aC 8%
MITERX S - AIEAFHMIAAE
BREEENBELRY T RBHNK
MEBEEREE - WBENEFEERE
B BIRREIMRITER AL RE -

(b) FEWRRFE
FEAERFEER - REBBIEFH
FHEERMAET TR AN N8 & F SRR
TE  RFMHATVREBEERNTIRIA MR
ERHERBAMEERNBELRE
e Boh - ZERFTAERTF BT
REPHRLFHT REUBRIRTEEDR
IR ITEIMBELERES - EEE
REH|E QP EBZ SN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R

(BRSBBEREEAIN - LIETTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

() Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatments of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of such transactions are reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the related tax benefits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management reassess
these estimates at each end of the respective reporting
period.

(d) Investment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let a vacant warehouse
but has decided not to treat this property as an
investment property because it is not the Group's
intention to hold this property in the long-term for
capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly, this
property is still treated an item of other property, plant
and equipment.

25 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 11 January 2013, JSSC and Huaian Hetai Investment Co.,
Ltd., a third party, has set up a new subsidiary, with equity
interests of 70% and 30% respectively. The subsidiary named
Jiangsu Kingtai Packaging Technology Co., Ltd is principally
engaged in manufacturing and trading of aluminium foil films
for cigarette packaging.

26 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sheen
Tai Group Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI and
beneficially owned by Guo Yumin. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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aaHhEt R e (&)

() FrE®t
BEEMSHBRBIRETRZHRRD
BRI HE - AEEEZEEFHERZH
BBR BT RBENGHEE - B
RHMBERIZS EHREHE BN R
FrBEBAEE - ATMBMEREER S
BOREHRBREES T IARER - HRZ
FREVAREEESENARBEANRR
] BE AT E A LA K 85 R 2 B BR B0 M By T
VARERR - B8 I8 JE R VR I I T A RT A R
KREVERTBE MR A BENE - EEERF
WERREHAEZ SR

(d) BEWX
AEBERAE-HEZERE - ERE
THIEENERE/RENE  ARAKE
BESRAFALBEMREENEEX
HE2WA - Bt - iR EDS RS
Hip= - BB M&EHEE -

BREPRNFEARSEH

2013F1 118 » JSSCEE=HHEZEHRTKR
BERDNBINZ—RMMBAR - D RIES
% ET70%K%30%AXHE o %M B A A& AL &
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BEBEAIRGE -
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M2012F12A318 - EERE - A&ENE
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27 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial

27

statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

EREH BB IRNETAN  HHEHRXZE5 — A2 EKzRE 0925

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
BB EERE105 - LY HHRE

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

BRI EERNE N5 - RALH

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
ERVBEREENE 129, - HEREMELHEr
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

BBV HEREERE 39 - A FEHE

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
BEGTEAE27 - B FHZK2011)

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures
BB REAE28 REZLNAIRE ELENRE
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

KIS B A G ERIE 199 - ESEF

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
BB ISIRELERI20099F F201 14 B o FF Z 20

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

— Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements

B Hs R it ot

(BRBBEEIEIN - LUBTTAEN)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REZE2012F12A3MB L EEC &
MmEMARERNVIERT - FEARZE
VEBERE

HETBRAMBEBEOE  FESHMAEE
B ZEREE2012F12831HIEFE H K
ERE KRR AR B IRF IR MBS T R A IFH 24
Bl o ZEEFT RERBIE TS Al s AL EAE
s -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RUT HEI
ZERBNE

BB AR

1 July 2012
201257H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
20131 H1H
1 January 2013
201351 H1H

BEMBRELNETROVET N - 2H TR - #E - RE - HiieHEERSHEE

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

1 January 2014
201451 A1H

BRGTEREINNBIR 2B TA 22— HilieHEERSHMEE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BBV HERELERNESR I HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

1 January 2015
20151 H1H

AERBEFHEZRSETBRRERHNE
2 -BEH AEBECSHER  RNZSE
ERT N AR BE S AN SR B MV A8 & S48 S A AR
ERERTE -

IEZRZEREBARLR | —T——FFR



Four-Year Financial Summary

NERBERE
Year ended December 31,
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009
201245 20114 20104 20094
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
FHET F&T F&T FET
Turnover BEE 699,555.00 674,983.00 550,534.00  264,457.00
Cost of sales SHER A (445,033.00) (428,346.00) (356,787.00) (167,688.00)
Gross profit EF 254,522.00 246,637.00  193,747.00 96,769.00
Other revenue and net income H g A K E Uz 16,188.00 26,003.00 13,759.00 25,024.00
Distribution costs DA (11,941.00) (17,642.00) (13,366.00)  (15,316.00)
Administrative expenses TH R (66,459.00) (43,169.00) (30,848.00)  (19,069.00)
Other operating expenses Hih &M (844.00) (17.00) (3,405.00) (457.00)
Profit from operations T 191,466.00 211,812.00  159,887.00 86,951.00
Finance costs B RS A AR (21,085.00) (18,603.00) (16,394.00) (2,026.00)
Profit before taxation BADER 170,381.00  193,209.00  143,493.00 84,925.00
Income tax FRiS®t (46,453.00) (52,453.00)  (38,331.00) (20,721.00)
Profit for the year EREF 123,928.00  140,756.00  105,162.00 64,204.00
Attributable to: R AL -
Equity shareholders of the Company RATEZRRE 70,076.00 81,426.00 60,684.00 38,084.00
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 53,852.00  59,330.00  44,478.00  26,120.00
Profit for the year ERER 123,928.00  140,756.00  105,162.00 64,204.00
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total Assets BwEE 790,131.00 829,317.00 719,996.00 615,263.00
Total liabilities RN (395,598.00) (438,514.00) (444,661.00) (412,072.00)
Net Assets FEE 394,533.00 390,803.00 275,335.00 203,191.00
Total equity attributable to equity ZARAFEZRER
shareholders of the Company Ehaks 333,505.00 = 241,176.00 157,281.00  118,758.00

@ SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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